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Debt free company since incep  on
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Dear Shareholders,

I am delighted to inform you that our company has made steady progress during the year, with persistent execuƟ on 
of our strategy of developing innovaƟ ve products and soluƟ ons and focusing on niche areas within our industry that 
are poised for high growth.

Our move towards invesƟ ng in core product development using the latest developments in mobile technologies has 
resulted in an innovaƟ ve new product porƞ olio. Our eff orts to re-defi ne our posiƟ on in the domesƟ c market have 
borne fruit resulƟ ng in a growth of 135% in domesƟ c revenue over the previous year.

During the year we took the decision to reduce our focus on our legacy 
businesses of Telco products and Mobile Payments aggregaƟ on. The decision 
was taken aŌ er a thorough analysis of return on investment and growth 
prospects. The challenges including regulatory changes that impede the 
growth of this business are also a key decision factor for reduced focus on 
these verƟ cals.

With the ever increasing penetraƟ on of smart phones, the needs of the 
new age smart phone user have changed. Mobile Apps and games are 
increasingly becoming an integral part of the markeƟ ng campaigns of 
hand set manufacturers (OEM) and Telcos for customer acquisiƟ on and 
retenƟ on. We have developed an innovaƟ ve new frame work named STAR 

(Strategic and Targeted campaigns for AcquisiƟ on & RetenƟ on). This framework 
is developed with the approach that is in line with the strategic objecƟ ves of our customers. STAR brings 

an umbrella of soluƟ ons to support OEMs, Telco’s and enterprises in achieving customer acquisiƟ on, retenƟ on by 
off ering services that bring greater convenience and Ɵ mely delivery of relevant promoƟ ons.

Below are some examples of our deployments of the STAR soluƟ on porƞ olio:

GiŌ 4U for RIM: GiŌ 4U is a markeƟ ng campaign for acquiring new customers; the campaign was launched across 
5 countries in the Middle East to promote new handsets. With every new handset, AED 200 worth of mobile apps 
and games are provided for user to consume.The campaign has resulted in a 30% increase in sales for the targeted 
handsets.

Ramadan campaign for RIM:  This is a campaign directed towards retenƟ on and was launched in the holy month 
of Ramadan off ering high end apps and games for consumers to download and enjoy during the Ramadan season. 
Launched across 10 countries across Middle East & APAC, the campaign saw tremendous tracƟ on within days of 
launch, thus enhancing customer experience on Black Berry devices.

Games Club:This is a socially connected gaming service that off ers users high quality games with fl exible licensing 
and aff ordable subscripƟ on opƟ ons. Games Club is now live across several mobile operators including Aircel, 
Vodafone, Smart, Three, EƟ salat and several others as well as OEM’s like RIM and others. Across these deployments 
Games Club now has over 1 million acƟ ve users generaƟ ng over 2 million game plays per day.

Social networking is the overwhelming trend of the Ɵ mes we live in. We have already built several social features 
into our plaƞ orm like integraƟ on with Facebook and TwiƩ er but are now set to release a truly social gaming plaƞ orm 
with unique features like P2P gaming, leaderboards and tournament play.

In an environment fi lled with constant technological advances it is important for an organizaƟ on to re-invent and 
re-focus itself in order to stay compeƟ Ɵ ve. I believe we have now posiƟ oned ourselves for success in the years to 
come and I would like to thank all stakeholders for their conƟ nuous support.

Warm Regards,

Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari,
Chairman & Managing Director.

Chairman’s Message



Transforming the way business thinks technology by providing customer 
acquisiƟ on and retenƟ on soluƟ ons for OEMs and Carriers

For all the businesses, primary means of growth involves ac-
quisiƟ on of new customers and retenƟ on of exisƟ ng clients. 
In this era of compeƟ Ɵ on where customer acquisiƟ on is a 
challenging task, involving high cost of markeƟ ng and eff orts 
of resources, every organizaƟ on aims to widen their cus-
tomer count and to minimize their customer acquisiƟ on cost 
and lead Ɵ me.  STAR , Tanla’s new age soluƟ on is a innovaƟ ve 
format with tradiƟ onal approach to transform the way busi-
ness thinks and uses technology to acquire, reward and retain 
customers. 

With a foot print in more than 400Mn handsets and moving 
upward , STAR incorporates the new In-App technology to 
help OEMs and Carriers build pin point highly personalized 
promoƟ onal campaigns that strategically target, acquire and 
retain customers.

STAR brings an umbrella of soluƟ ons to support OEMs in 
achieving customer acquisiƟ on, retenƟ on and improved cus-
tomer service goals, extending customers’ life on the device 
by off ering services that bring greater convenience and de-
liver Ɵ mely and relevant promoƟ ons.
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Games are the most downloaded apps from app stores 
worldwide that doesn’t always result in revenues for the value 
chain. Smart phone user’s ability to take informed decision 
enables him to have rich gaming experience at reasonable 
costs that fi t in their budget. Club star is a proven model for 
markeƟ ng games which enables Carriers, OEMs and Developers 
the power of in-app retailing to change content consumpƟ on 
paƩ erns and build eff ecƟ ve retenƟ on and loyalty programs.

Club Star enables user parƟ cipaƟ on in a Ɵ med promoƟ on to 
access and play unlimited games, on-device recommendaƟ on 
and retailing.

Locstar is poised to blend locaƟ on, coupons with in-app real 
estate of games and apps to deliver connected promoƟ ons that 
bring carriers, OEMs, brands and users together. This provides 
the user with an immersive experience while allowing the eco-
system to fulfi ll their campaign goals.

In summary LOC enables building of campaigns on any 
combinaƟ on of Brand/ carrier / OEM/ LocaƟ on/ Content/ User/ 
Off er, In-App display that brings the user directly to the off er, 
In-App moneƟ zaƟ on brings the convenience of redempƟ on 
from within the game, dynamic locaƟ on based in-app licensing 
helps build innovaƟ ve promoƟ ons like visit to play, visit once-
play many or mulƟ  visit-mulƟ  play, qualitaƟ ve user locaƟ on 
based analyƟ cs drives eff ecƟ ve service planning.

The popularity of prepaid cards, Top-ups, GiŌ  cards and Stored 
Value cards has extended signifi cantly to every shopping and 
payment channel. Prepaid card programs provide opportuniƟ es 
for businesses to acquire a new customer base, promote brand 
recall, and lead users to experience new service off erings.

Pinstar seamlessly complements the potenƟ al of prepaid 
card programs to help Carriers/OEMs to build highly targeted 
campaigns that ensure that the right content is being delivered 
to the right user at the right Ɵ me and place.

Brand 
sponsored 
locaƟ on base 
In-App 
promoƟ ons

In-app locaƟ on 
based game 
acƟ vaƟ on with 
bill number

User can 
acƟ vate game 
in sponsored 
brand loca-
Ɵ ons
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BlackBerry Touch campaign
The Brief
Acquire new customers for Blackberry 
Touch devices and build deeper 
customer engagements using innovaƟ ve 
targeted promoƟ onal campaigns in the 
Middle East region. 

The SoluƟ on
20 apps and games from leading 
publishers are bundled with handsets to 
add value and diff erenƟ ate the handset. 
All content is wrapped using Tanla’s 
proprietary License Manager to enable 

targeƟ ng of the campaign by handset, 
geography, pin and carrier as well as to 
prevent unauthorized usage. Customers 
can access the GiŌ  Card by scanning a 
QR code or download it through RIM’s 
applicaƟ on store, App World. 

The Results
Since launch, GiŌ 4U campaign has been 
successful by registering a 30% increase 
in customer acquisiƟ on and signifi cant 
increase in Appworld usage and content 
consumpƟ on in the region.

Numerous customer studies have 
concluded that availability of content is 
one of the key drivers for purchase of 
smart phones to increase engagement 
and reduce churn. Tanla adopts this 
growing demand for content and thus 
enables targeted campaigns coupled 
with secure fl exible licensing of 
content to aƩ ract and acquire new user 
segments.

mers for Blackberry
d build deeper

targe
geog
prev

h i f

GiŌ 4U
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The Brief
To reward Blackberry users during the 
Ramadan season demonstraƟ ng cultural 
awareness in order to build loyalty to 
the brand.
The SoluƟ on
Tanla designed an app that would be 
available to Blackberry users for free 
during the Ramadan season. The app 
allows users to discover and download 
over 70 games and applicaƟ ons for free 
as well as provides topical content like 
Ramadan greeƟ ngs, IŌ ar Ɵ mes, photo 
sharing over BBM, Facebook and email, 

Users can access the App by scanning a 
QR code or through RIM’s applicaƟ on 
store, App World. 

This exclusive campaign provides 
Blackberry users the unique opportunity 
to enjoy content from leading global 
publishers worth AED 200 for each 
user. The Ramadan app is available for 
Blackberry users with OS 5 and above 
handsets across Asia Pacifi c, Middle 
East and Africa with a rich user interface 
off ered in English, Arabic, Urdu and 
Hindi.

The Results
Over 500,000 app downloads in just 3 
weeks of launch and have received great 
reviews on Appworld – “All people in 
the Arab world go  a have this. Works 
PERFECT!!!” on my Bold 9780.
The campaign helped RIM to achieve 
all markeƟ ng and business objecƟ ves, 
showing its understanding of regional 
culture and its commitment to the local 
community through the launch of this 
campaign.

Ramadan Campaign
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Games Club
The Challenge
Carriers, Handset Manufacturers and 
Game publishers have not been able to 
cash in on the tremendous poten  al of 
mobile gaming due to the fact that con-
sumers are budget conscious and their 
consump  on habits do not match the 
way games are licensed. Consumers do 
not always want to pay the full price to 
purchase a game that they might only 
want to play for a few hours.

The Solu  on
Tanla’s solu  on to the Carriers and 
Handset Manufacturers was a plug and 

play Games Club solu  on which allows 
easy management of content with the 
ability to provide try & buy as well as 
several fl exible licensing models like pay 
per play, day, week or month over exist-
ing games with a unique ability to con-
trol usage and pricing in real-  me from 
the backend pla  orm. 
To enhance the user experience, the 
solu  on also recommends new games 
within the game providing a new chan-
nel for game discovery and download 
and expanding addi  onal streams for 
revenue genera  on within the game. 

The Results
The results achieved were phenomenal 
for the carriers and OEMs increasing 
their gaming ARPU to $1.1 resul  ng 
in 66% increase; averaging 30-50% in-
crease in gaming users. 
Tanla’s games club solu  on demon-
strated how license wrapper technology 
can mul  ply mobile content revenues 
and profi tability through the launch of 
games club solu  on for carriers like Air-
tel, Vodafone, Aircel, Docomo, Smart, 
E  salat, Grameenphone and Hand-
set manufacturers like Blackberry and 
Nokia. 

ults
s achieved were phenomena
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Overview
The extensive and ever-increasing pen-
etraƟ on of mobile phones in develop-
ing and emerging markets presents a 
signifi cant opportunity for mobile gam-
ing. Mobile gaming contributes to 8% of 
overall VAS revenues.
India VAS industry is expected to be INR 
33,280 Cr by 2013; currently India has 
an approx. 200 million Mobile data us-

ers in 600 MN mobile subscribers and 
is expected to increase to 500 MN data 
users.
Games Club
Tanla’s Games Club soluƟ on powered by 
Tanla Wrapper is enabled by using data 
recharge (top-up) cards. The soluƟ on 
enables unlimited gaming bundled with 
data plans of Telco. User can recharge 
the data plan and enjoy unlimited gam-

ing from the portal. 
Games Club enables (a) in game sub-
scriber engagement (AcƟ ve & InacƟ ve) 
to ensure sƟ ckiness, purchase that cre-
ates a new payment/ top-up channel 
for recharge and recommendaƟ ons to 
drive downloads, (b) Social integraƟ on 
through sharing scores, challenging 
friends from with-in the game. 

Unlimited Gaming Data Recharge Cards
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Social gaming is already popular on the 
internet as has been proven by games 
like Farmville and oters that have used 
Facebook to socially enable their games 
on the internet. As the mobile phone is 
becoming the primary device for social 
networking the need for a truly mobile 
social gaming plaƞ orm has arisen that 
can not only socially enable new games 
but can also work with back catalogues 
of exisƟ ng games.

Tanla’s Mobile Social Gaming 
pla  orm
Tanla’s mobile social gaming plaƞ orm 
helps users socialize while playing games 
and engage users in mulƟ ple areas. With 
minimal or zero eff ort from game de-
velopers, Tanla’s plaƞ orm will be able 
to fetch real Ɵ me scores from the game 
and publish on to their social network. 
Along with the standard features of Chat, 
Blogs with friends, users can parƟ cipate 
in global gaming tournaments organized 

inside the plaƞ orm with exciƟ ng graƟ fi -
caƟ on to parƟ cipants. Virtual goods are 
the small Ɵ cket items purchased inside 
the game that enhances the gaming ex-
perience of the user. 

Tanla proposes to partner with leading 
publishers of Mobile gaming to make 
their games social for an enhanced user 
experience. The soluƟ on is planned for 
early next quarter launch.

Mobile Social Gaming

8
Annual Report 2011 - 12



Annual Report 2011 - 12
9

Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy 
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy, founder of Tanla SoluƟ ons Ltd. has been serving as the Chairman & Managing 
Director since 1999. Mr. Reddy has been the principal architect of Tanla’s leadership, growth and strategy 
and is responsible for Corporate Vision, M&A and Strategic Investments

Mr. Gautam Sabharwal
Director – Global Business Development
Mr. Gautam Sabharwal leads Tanla’s business development and global strategic alliances and partnerships. 
Mr. Sabharwal joined Tanla from Techserv which became a subsidiary of Tanla SoluƟ ons Ltd; his past 
experience also includes several years of managing successful businesses in the emerging telecom services 
markets of Europe.

Mr. Satish Kathirisetti, 
Chief Technology Offi  cer
Mr. SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ   leads the ApplicaƟ ons & InnovaƟ ons Group, and is responsible for technology 
guidance and architectural design of all products and services of Tanla. Mr. Kathiriseƫ   joined Tanla in 2001 
from Serendip Technologies as Chief Technologist with remarkable contribuƟ on in the areas of telecom 
voice soluƟ ons and unifi ed messaging. 

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan
Independent Director

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, LLB (Hons) is pracƟ cing as Solicitor in England and Wales. Mr. Khaitan is a partner in 
M/s Bower CoƩ on Khaitan, Solicitors, a law fi rm based in London; he specializes in immigraƟ on and 
liƟ gaƟ on issues among other areas such as tax planning and fi nancial advice. 

Dr. Sudhanshu Sekhar Jamuar
Independent Director
Dr. Sudhanshu Sekhar Jamuar, is an engineering graduate from Bihar InsƟ tute of Technology & M.Tech,  
Ph.D from Indian InsƟ tute of Technology, Kharagpur. Dr. Jamuar was a recipient of Meghnad Saha Memorial 
Award from IETE and a senior member of IEEE and Fellow member of IETE(India).  Currently Dr. Jamuar is 
a Professor in University of Malaya, Malaysia. 

Board of Directors

Padma Bhushan Ram Narain Agarwal
Independent Director
Padma Bhushan Ram Narain Agarwal, a scienƟ st of great renown and recipient of several awards such as 
including Padma Sri (1990), Padma Bhushan (2000), Dr. Biren Roy Space Science Award (1990), DRDO Technology 
Leadership Award (1998), Chandrasekhara SaraswaƟ  NaƟ onal Eminence Award for Science (2000) and the DRDO 
LifeƟ me Achievement Award (2004) was the Project Director of Agni Missile Program and hails from Rajasthan.  
Mr. Agarwal post graduated in AeronauƟ cal Engineering from Madras InsƟ tute of Technology and did his Masters 
in Engineering in Aerospace Engineering from the Indian InsƟ tute of Science, Bangalore.
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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,
Our Directors have pleasure in presenƟ ng the 16th Directors’ Report on the business and operaƟ ons of our Company for the 
fi nancial year ended on March 31, 2012.

1. Results of Opera  ons                        in Rs.

                   

         
  
        

2. Further Issue Of Equity Shares On Preferen  al Basis
The company has not issued Equity Shares on PreferenƟ al basis during the fi nancial year 2011-12.
3. Public Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of SecƟ on 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made 
there under during the fi nancial year under review.

4. Directors
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on of the Company, three Directors reƟ re 
by rotaƟ on at the forthcoming Annual General MeeƟ ng and being eligible, off er themselves for re-appointment. A brief resume 
of the Directors seeking re-appointment is annexed to the NoƟ ce. Details of Directors who resigned aŌ er the previous AGM Ɵ ll 
the date of this Report: 
 1.  Mr. Surjeet Kumar Palhan, Independent Director resigned from the Board on September 30, 2011 aŌ er serving the  
      Board since July 18, 2007.
 2.  Mr. Amit Gupta, Director Finance, resigned from the Board on November 01, 2011 aŌ er serving the Board since   
       November 11 ,2005.
 3.  Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal, Director – OperaƟ ons, resigned from the Board on December 30, 2011 aŌ er serving the   
      Board since October 27, 2004. 
 4. Mr. Navnit Chachan, Director & Chief OperaƟ ng Offi  cer, resigned from the Board on June 30, 2012 aŌ er serving the  
      Board since November 11, 2005. 
 5. Mr. Shrikanth Madan Chitnis, Independent Director resigned from the Board on August 14, 2012 aŌ er serving the  
      Board since December 28, 2005.
The Board placed on record appreciaƟ on for the services rendered by the Directors during their tenure on the Board.
 

Financial performance of the Company (Standalone):  

Par  culars
Results Results

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

Income from operaƟ ons                                          36 83 28 675 28 70 50 801

OperaƟ ng Profi t (EBIDTA) (65 72 494) 5 45 47 723

Less: DepreciaƟ on & amorƟ saƟ on 13 93 47 846 31 21 72 843

OperaƟ ng Profi t before Tax (14 59 20 339) (25 76 25 120)

Add: Other Income  49 18 636  53 40 458

Profi t Before Tax (14 10 01 703) (25 22 84 661)

Less: Provision for Tax (3 51 27 709) (7 37 93 030)

Profi t aŌ er Tax (10 58 73 994) (17 84 91 631)

Dividend (incl. dividend tax) -   1 18 33 408

Transfer to General Reserve -   -

Net Profi t Transferred to Reserves (10 58 73 994) (19 03 25 039)

Earnings per share: Basic / Diluted (Rs.1 each) (1.04) (1.76)

Dividend Rate Nil 10%

Share Capital 10 14 79 593 10 14 79 593

Reserves & Surplus 616 42 24 834 627 00 98 828

Total shareholders funds 626 57 04 427 637 15 78 421

Book value per share (Rs.1 each) 61.74 62.79



Annual Report 2011 - 12
11

 
5. Management Discussion and Analysis
A separate Management Discussion and Analysis Report is also aƩ ached and forms part of this report.

6. Subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Company are:

1. Mufi thumb Entertainment Private Limited
2. Tanla Mobile Private Limited
3. Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd., Singapore
4. Tanla SoluƟ ons (UK) Limited, U.K.

The step down subsidiaries of the Company are:
1. Tanla Mobile Ltd., UK a subsidiary of Tanla SoluƟ ons (UK) Ltd., UK.
2. Tanla Mobile Spain SL, Spain a subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Ltd., UK.
3. Tanla Mobile Middle East FZ LLC, Dubai
4. Tanla Mobile Inc., USA
5. Tanla Mobile South Africa Proprietary Ltd., South Africa
6. Tanla Mobile South Asia Pvt Ltd., Sri Lanka and
7. Tanla Mobile Ireland Pvt Ltd., Ireland are subsidiaries of Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd., Singapore
8. Tanla Mobile Finland Oy, a subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Middle East FZ LLC, Dubai
9. Tanla Oy, Finland, is a subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Finland Oy

TZ Mobile Private Limited, incorporated in July 2009 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 is a Joint Venture between 
Tanla SoluƟ ons Ltd and Zed Worldwide Holdings SL, Spain each holding 50% of shareholding.

7. Consolidated Financial Statements
Pursuant to the exempƟ on granted vide General Circular No. 2/2011 dated February 08, 2011, by the Ministry of Corporate 
Aff airs, Government of India, a gist of the fi nancial performance of the subsidiary companies is contained in the Annual Report.  
The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies are open for inspecƟ on by any member/investor and the Company will make 
available these documents/details upon request by any member of the company to any investor of its subsidiary companies who 
may be interested in obtaining the same.
In terms of Clause 32 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and as prescribed by AccounƟ ng Standard 21 noƟ fi ed by 
the Government of India under SecƟ on 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements duly 
signed by the Statutory Auditors are annexed elsewhere in this Annual Report.

8. Directors Responsibility Statement
In terms of SecƟ on 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors hereby confi rm that:

 (i) In the preparaƟ on of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounƟ ng standards have been followed along with   
 proper explanaƟ on relaƟ ng to material departures;
 (ii) Appropriate accounƟ ng policies have been applied consistently,  judgements  and esƟ mates which are reasonable  
 and prudent have been made so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the company at the end of the  
 fi nancial year and of the loss of the company for that period;
 (iii) Proper and suffi  cient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounƟ ng records in accordance   
 with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the company and for prevenƟ ng and   
 detecƟ ng fraud and other irregulariƟ es; 
 (iv) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
9. Corporate Governance
Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with Stock Exchanges, a report on Corporate Governance together 
with a cerƟ fi cate from M/s Ravi & Subramanyam, PracƟ cing Company Secretaries, Hyderabad, features as part of the Annual 
Report. The company will conƟ nue to implement and adhere in leƩ er and spirit to the policies of good corporate governance.

10. ParƟ culars of Employees
In terms of the provisions of SecƟ on 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (ParƟ culars of Employees) 
Rules, 1975, as amended, no employee /whole-Ɵ me Director has been paid a remuneraƟ on equal to or exceeding the remuneraƟ on 
prescribed under the above amended rules.
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11. Conserva  on Of Energy, Research And Development, Technology Absorp  on, Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo
Conversa  on of Energy
The operaƟ ons of the Company are not energy intensive.  However, adequate measures have been taken to conserve and reduce the energy 
consumpƟ on by using energy effi  cient hardware, usage of natural light and other equipment. Air CondiƟ oners are used only when required and 
air-condiƟ oned areas have been treated with heat resistant material.  We conƟ nue to evaluate new technologies and invest to conserve and 
reduce energy consumpƟ on.  We believe energy saved is energy produced.
Research & Development, Technology Absorp  on
The company has rendered certain cost eff ecƟ ve products and soluƟ ons to its clients as a result of its constant endeavour to research and 
develop new products, processes and methodologies for improving the producƟ vity and quality of its products and services.
Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
The parƟ culars regarding foreign exchange earnings and expenditure are annexed hereto and forms part of this report.

12. Employee Stock Op  on
OpƟ ons were granted to employees in October 2009, but no opƟ ons were vested with the employees pursuant to the grant.
Disclosures in compliance with SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock OpƟ on Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme 
Guidelines, 1999) as amended, are as under:

Nature of Disclosure Par  culars

OpƟ ons granted 41,75,000 opƟ ons were granted on October 16, 2009, each opƟ on gives 
the grantee a right to subscribe to equity share of face value of Re.1/- each. 

The pricing formula
At a discount of 20% on the latest available closing market price prior to 
the date of grant of opƟ ons of the company on the exchange having the 
highest trading volume.

OpƟ ons Vested No OpƟ ons were vested during the year
OpƟ ons Exercised No OpƟ ons were exercised during the year

Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of opƟ on No OpƟ ons were exercised during the year

OpƟ ons lapsed No OpƟ ons were vested during the year
VariaƟ on of terms of OpƟ ons No variaƟ on has been done
Money realized by exercise of OpƟ ons As no OpƟ ons were exercised during the year, no money was realized.
Total number of opƟ ons in force Details of OpƟ ons granted to 
senior managerial personnel 41,75,000

Any other employee who receives a grant in any one year of opƟ on 
amounƟ ng to 5% or more of opƟ on granted during the year No OpƟ ons were granted during the year 2011-12

IdenƟ fi ed employees who were granted opƟ on, during any one year, 
equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital(excluding outstanding 
warrants and conversions) of the company at the Ɵ me of grant

No OpƟ ons were granted during the year 2011-12

Diluted Earnings per share(EPS) pursuant to issue of shares on 
exercise of opƟ on calculated in accordance with AccounƟ ng 
Standard(AS) 20 – Earnings Per Share

No shares were issued as no opƟ ons were exercised.

(i) Method of calculaƟ on of employee compensaƟ on cost.
(ii) Diff erence between the compensaƟ on cost using 
            the intrinsic value of the stock opƟ ons(which is the method
            of accounƟ ng used by the company) and the CompensaƟ on
            cost that would have been recognized in the accounts if the
            fair value of opƟ ons had been used as method of AccounƟ ng.

(iii)       Impact of diff erence menƟ oned above in (i) above on the
             profi ts of the company.
(iv)        Impact of the diff erence menƟ oned in (i) above on the EPS
             of the company

As no shares were alloƩ ed during the year 2011-12, this secƟ on
 is in-applicable

(i) Weighted Average exercise price of opƟ ons
(ii) Weighted Average fair value of opƟ ons

As no shares were alloƩ ed during the year 2011-12, this secƟ on is 
in-applicable

(i) Method used to esƟ mate the fair value of opƟ ons
(ii) Signifi cant assumpƟ ons used
              (Weighted Average informaƟ on relaƟ ng to all grants):-
(a) Risk free interest rate
(b) Expected life of opƟ ons
(c) Expected volaƟ lity
(d) Expected dividend yields
(e) Price of the underlying share in market at the Ɵ me/of 

opƟ on granted

As no shares were alloƩ ed during the year 2011-12, this secƟ on is in-
applicable
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13. Transfer of Unclaimed Shares to Suspense Account
870 Equity Shares held by 15 shareholders, in the “Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited – Demat Suspense Account” in Axis Bank Ltd., Jubilee Hills Branch, 
Hyderabad, as on March 31, 2012 in accordance with the provisions of Clause 5A of the LisƟ ng Agreement.  The voƟ ng rights on these shares 
shall remain frozen Ɵ ll the righƞ ul owner of these shares claims the shares.

14. Transfer of Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend to the Investor Educa  on and Protec  on Fund
Pursuant to SecƟ on 205A(5) of the Companies Act, 1956, and other applicable guidelines,Rs. 1,28,579.00 (Rupees One lakh twenty eight 
thousand fi ve hundred and seventy nine only) represenƟ ng the “Un-paid and Un-Claimed dividend for the year 2004-05” has been transferred 
to the Investor EducaƟ on and ProtecƟ on Fund.

15. Industrial Rela  ons
The company enjoyed cordial relaƟ ons with the employees during the year under review and the Management appreciates the employees 
of all cadres for their dedicated services to the company, and expects conƟ nued support, higher level of producƟ vity for achieving the targets 
set for the future.

16. Auditors and Auditor’s Report
M/s Ramasamy Koteswara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad, the Statutory Auditors, reƟ re at the ensuing annual general meeƟ ng 
and are eligible for re-appointment.  The company received confi rmaƟ on that their appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed 
limits under the provisions of SecƟ on 224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956. 
The Auditors Report to the shareholders for the year ended March 31, 2012 does not contain any qualifi caƟ on and therefore does not call for 
any explanaƟ ons/comments.

17. Group
List of Promoters including the Promoter Group of the company comprising “Group” as defi ned under the Monopolies and RestricƟ ve Trade 
PracƟ ces Act, 1969 (54 of 1969) pursuant to RegulaƟ on 3(1)(e)(i) of the SEBI(SubstanƟ al AcquisiƟ on of Shares & Takeovers) RegulaƟ ons, 1997 are:

1. Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy
2. Mrs. D. Tanuja Reddy
3. Mr. SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
4. Mr. Gautam Sabharwal

18. Acknowledgements
The Directors wish to express their appreciaƟ on of the support and co-operaƟ on of the Central and the State Governments, 
bankers, business partners, employees, associates and expects the same in future as well for sustaining the growth rates achieved 
in the past.

        On behalf of Board of Directors

               Sd/- 
Date: 14 August, 2012        D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Place : Hyderabad       Chairman & Managing Director

Foreign Exchange earnings & outgo:
a. Imports (valued on the cost, insurance and freight basis)                                                  In Rs.

Par  culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011

Import of capital goods 17 25 335 6 38 78 362

b. Ac  vity in foreign currency                     In Rs.

Par  culars  For the Year 2011-2012  For the Year 2010-2011 

Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

Income from soŌ ware products and off shore 
development services

14 15 01 021 19 07 09 339

Less: Expenditure in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

Cost of services 11 83 02 811 2 25 03 713

Foreign Travel Expenses 22 33 634 15 58 238

Professional Charges 3  20  202 14 93 105

Net earnings in foreign exchange 1 89 19 039 10 12 75 921
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Report on Corporate Governance

1. Company’s Philosophy
The Company aims at achieving transparency, accountability and equity in all facets of its operaƟ ons and in all interacƟ ons 
with stakeholders including shareholders, employees, clients, etc., and is commiƩ ed to achieve good standards of 
Corporate Governance. The Company believes that these pracƟ ces will result in sustainable growth of the Company.

2. Board Of Directors as on March 31, 2012
The Board of the Company consisted of Eight Directors. The composiƟ on of the Board as on March 31, 2012, 
consisted of 4 ExecuƟ ve Non-Independent Directors & 4 Non-ExecuƟ ve Independent Directors. The Chairman & 
Managing Director of the Company manages the day-to-day aff airs of the Company. The Board has an opƟ mum 
combinaƟ on of ExecuƟ ve & Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors as per clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement. 

3. Number of Board MeeƟ ngs held During the Financial Year 2011-12
Six meeƟ ngs of the Board of Directors were held during the fi nancial year 2011-12 on:
11th May, 2011; 10th August, 2011; 5th September, 2011; 30th September, 2011; 14th November, 2011 
and 14th February, 2012.      

Details of AƩ endance of Directors at the Board MeeƟ ngs and last AGM

Name of the Director
Number of 

Board MeeƟ ngs 
AƩ ended

AƩ endance at last 
Annual 

General MeeƟ ng

Directorship in 
other Public Com-

panies

No. of CommiƩ ees in 
othe Public  Limited Companies

ExecuƟ ve Directors Chairman Member

Mr.D.Uday Kumar Reddy 6 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Mr.Navnit Chachan 5 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Mr.Gautam Sabharwal Nil No Nil Nil Nil

Mr.SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  6 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Amit Gupta* 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Mr.Anoop Roy Kundal** Nil No Nil Nil Nil

Non-ExecuƟ ve
Independent Directors

            

Mr.Ram Narain Agarwal 6 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Mr.Sudhanshu Sekhar 
Jamuar ***

4 No Nil Nil Nil

Mr.Shrikanth Madan Chitnis Nil No Nil Nil Nil

Mr.Abhishek Khaitan Nil No Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Surjeet Kumar Pal-
han****

3 No Nil Nil Nil

*      Mr Amit Gupta resigned on November 01, 2011.

**    Mr Anoop Roy Kundal resigned on December 30, 2011.

***  Mr Sudhanshu Shekar Jamuar parƟ cipated in the Board MeeƟ ng on September 30, 2011 through telephone.

****Mr Surjeet Kumar Palhan resigned on September 30, 2011.
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4. CommiƩ ees of the Board
The Board comprised of the following CommiƩ ees as on March 31 2012:
Audit CommiƩ ee:
The Company consƟ tuted a Qualifi ed Independent Audit CommiƩ ee in accordance with the provisions of Clause 
49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with Stock Exchanges and SecƟ on 292A of the Companies Act,1956.The CommiƩ ee 
is empowered with the powers as prescribed under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement and SecƟ on 292A of the 
Companies Act,1956. The CommiƩ ee also acts in terms of reference and direcƟ ons of the Board from Ɵ me to Ɵ me.

The Audit CommiƩ ee met fi ve Ɵ mes during the year on 11th May, 2011, 10th August, 2011; 5th September, 2011; 
14th November, 2011 and 14th February, 2012.

The ComposiƟ on of the Audit CommiƩ ee and details of member’s aƩ endance in the CommiƩ ee MeeƟ ng held 
during the year is as follows:

S.No. Name of Director DesignaƟ on Category No. of MeeƟ ngs AƩ ended

1 Mr.Ram Narain Agarwal Chairman Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 5

2 Mr.Surjit Kumar Palhan** Member Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 3

3 Mr. Shrikanth Madan Chitnis Member Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve Nil

4 Mr. Sudhanshu Shekar Jamuar*** Member Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 1

5 Mr. SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  * Member ExecuƟ ve Non-Independent 3

***Mr. Sudhanshu Shekar Jamuar was appointed as a member of the Audit CommiƩ ee, pursuant to resignaƟ on of 
 ** Mr.Surjit Kumar Palhan from the Board on September 30, 2011. 
    *Mr. SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  , Chief Technology Offi  cer was appointed as a member on September 05, 2011.

Seshanuradha Chava, the Company Secretary was the Secretary of the CommiƩ ee.

The Chairman of the Audit CommiƩ ee was present at the previous Annual General MeeƟ ng. The Statutory Auditors, 
Internal Auditors and Chief Financial Offi  cer of the Company were invited to aƩ end the Audit CommiƩ ee MeeƟ ngs 
for discussions on various issues.

The Audit CommiƩ ee has the following powers and performs all duƟ es as specifi ed under the LisƟ ng Agreement:
1. To invesƟ gate into any maƩ er in relaƟ on to the items, specifi ed in SecƟ on 292A of the Companies Act, 1956   
 or any maƩ er referred to it by the Board and shall have full access to informaƟ on contained in the records,   
 if necessary.
2. To invesƟ gate any acƟ vity within its terms of reference.
3. To seek informaƟ on from any employee.
4. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.
5. To secure aƩ endance of outsiders with relevant experience.

RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee
The RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee makes recommendaƟ on to the Board of Directors regarding remuneraƟ on payable to 
ExecuƟ ve Directors and Senior Management of the company. 

RemuneraƟ on Policy:
The Company pays remuneraƟ on by way of salary, benefi ts, perquisites and allowances (fi xed component) to its 
Chairman & Managing Director and other ExecuƟ ve Directors as decided by the RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee and 
approved by the members from Ɵ me to Ɵ me. Siƫ  ng fee of  Rs.10,000/- per meeƟ ng is paid to a Non-ExecuƟ ve 
Director for aƩ ending a Board MeeƟ ng, as per the ArƟ cles of AssociaƟ on.
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RemuneraƟ on of employees consists of base remuneraƟ on, perquisites, allowances and incenƟ ves. The components of 
the total remuneraƟ on are governed by the industry paƩ ern, qualifi caƟ on, experience, performance, responsibiliƟ es 
handled by the employee. The objecƟ ve of the remuneraƟ on policy is to moƟ vate employees to excel in their 
performance, recognize their contribuƟ on and retain talent in the organizaƟ on.

The RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee met once during the year on December 28, 2011.The ComposiƟ on of the RemuneraƟ on 
CommiƩ ee and details of aƩ endance of the members at the CommiƩ ee meeƟ ng held during the year is as follows:

S.No. Name of Director Status Nature of Directorship No. of 
MeeƟ ngs AƩ ended

1 Mr.Sudhanshu Shekhar Jamuar Chairman Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 1

2 Mr.Ram Narain Agarwal Member Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve 1

3 Mr.Shrikanth Madan Chitnis Member Independent Non-ExecuƟ ve Nil

Seshanuradha Chava, the Company Secretary was the Secretary of the CommiƩ ee.
ParƟ culars of remuneraƟ on and other benefi ts paid to ExecuƟ ve Directors during for the year ended  March 31, 
2012:
             in Rs.

S. No. Name Salary and 
allowances

ContribuƟ ons to 
Provident & other funds

Perquisites  
& incenƟ ves

Total 
remuneraƟ on

1 Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy 45 63 253 2 30 080 14 400 48 07 733

2 Mr. K. SaƟ sh 40 56 975 2 04 553 14 400 42 75 928

3 Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal 21 42 000 1 08 000 14 400 22 64 400

4 Mr. Amit Gupta 11 04 320 85 680 14 400 12 04 400

5 Mr. Navnit Chachan 6 00 000 28 800 14 400 6 43 200

Total  1 24 66 548  6 57 113  72 000  1 31 95 661 

ParƟ culars of siƫ  ng fees paid to ExecuƟ ve Directors during the year ended March 31, 2012:
             in Rs.

Name Siƫ  ng Fees Reimbursement  of  Expenses Total

Mr.Ram Narain Agarwal 50 000 - 50 000

Mr.Shrikanth Madan Chitnis Nil - Nil

Mr.Surjeet Kumar Palhan 10 000 - 10 000

Mr.Abhishek Khaitan Nil - Nil

Mr.Sudhanshu Sekhar Jamuar  30 000 -  30 000 

Total  90 000 -  90 000 

Shareholders/Investors Grievance CommiƩ ee

The CommiƩ ee is empowered to redress the complaints of shareholders pertaining to share transfers, issue of 
duplicate share cerƟ fi cates, rematerialisaƟ on of shares, non-receipt of annual reports, dividends, etc.,
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The ComposiƟ on of the Shareholders/Investors Grievance CommiƩ ee is as follows:

S.No. Name of Director Status Nature of Directorship

1 Mr.Ram Narain Agarwal Chairman Independent & Non-ExecuƟ ve

2 Mr.D.Uday Kumar Reddy Member Non-Independent & ExecuƟ ve

3 Mr.Abhishek Khaitan Member Independent & Non-ExecuƟ ve

Seshanuradha Chava, Company Secretary, has been designated as Compliance Offi  cer of the Company in 
compliance with the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

The status of investor complaints received during the year is as follows:

S.NO Subject Received Resolved Pending

1 Non Receipt of Annual Reports 9 9 0

2 Non Receipt of Refund Order 1 1 0

3 Non Receipt of Dividend Warrants 24 24 0

4 Non Receipt of Shares 2 2 0

TOTAL 36 36 0

Investment CommiƩ ee:
The Board consƟ tuted an Investment CommiƩ ee with the following powers:

• To decide based on the necessity to open and operate bank account

• To invest/renew and withdraw fi xed deposits and other instruments in high quality interest bearing 
liquid instruments

• To invest surplus funds of the company in secured instruments like government securiƟ es, fi xed/term 
deposits with banks, etc.,

• Execute bank guarantees, obtain leƩ er of credit and perform all such acƟ viƟ es required/sƟ pulated by 
banks and fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons.

The ComposiƟ on of the Investment CommiƩ ee is as follows:

S.No. Name of Director DesignaƟ on Nature of Directorship

1 Mr. Uday Kumar Reddy Chairman Non-Independent & ExecuƟ ve

2 Mr. SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  Member Non-Independent & ExecuƟ ve

3 Mr.Anoop Roy Kundal* Member Non-Independent & ExecuƟ ve 

4 Mr.Amit Gupta** Member Non-Independent & ExecuƟ ve 

*  Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal, Director - OperaƟ ons has resigned from the Board on December 30, 2011.

**Mr Amit Gupta, Director - Finance has resigned from the Board on November 01, 2011.

5. Code of Conduct:
The Board of Directors has laid down a “Code of Conduct” for all the Board Members and the senior 
management of the Company and this code is posted on the website of the Company :www.tanla.com. A 
declaraƟ on to this eff ect, duly signed by the Managing Director is annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.
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6. IniƟ aƟ ves on prevenƟ on of insider trading pracƟ ces:
In compliance with SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟ on of Insider Trading) (Amendment) RegulaƟ ons, 
2011, the company framed comprehensive set of regulaƟ ons termed as “ Code of Conduct for PrevenƟ on of Insider 
Trading RegulaƟ ons” for its Directors and designated employees.  The Code lays down guidelines, which advises the 
Directors and the designated employees on the procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing 
with shares of the company.

Subsidiary Companies:
InformaƟ on pertaining to Subsidiary Companies is menƟ oned in point no. 6 of Directors’ Report.

7. General Body MeeƟ ngs: 
Details of locaƟ on and Ɵ me of holding of last three AGMs.

 Year LocaƟ on Date & Time

13th AGM – 2009 Tanla Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad-500081. September 29, 2009 10.30 A.M.

14th AGM – 2010 Tanla Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad-500081. September 30th, 2010 10.30 A.M.

15th AGM – 2011 Tanla Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad-500081. September 30th, 2011 10.30 A.M. 

The following Special ResoluƟ ons were passed at the 15th Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Members of the 
Company held on September 30, 2011:

• To fi x the remuneraƟ on payable to Mr. D. Uday Kumar Reddy, Chairman & Managing Director as approved 
by the RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee.

• To fi x the remuneraƟ on payable to Mr. Amit Gupta, Director - Finance as approved by the RemuneraƟ on  
CommiƩ ee.

• To fi x the remuneraƟ on payable to Mr. SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  , Chief Technical Offi  cer as approved by the 
RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee.

• To fi x the remuneraƟ on payable to Mr. Anoop Roy Kundal, Whole-Ɵ me Director as approved by the 
RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee.

Postal Ballot: 
During the year 2011-12, no postal ballot was conducted.

8. Disclosures 
CMD & CFO CerƟ fi caƟ on
The CMD & CFO have cerƟ fi ed to the Board in accordance with Clause 49(V) of the LisƟ ng Agreement pertaining to 
annual cerƟ fi caƟ on for the fi nancial year ended March 31,2012.

Related Party TransacƟ ons:
There has been no materially signifi cant related party transacƟ on with the Company Promoters, Directors, the 
Management, the Subsidiaries or relaƟ ves of Directors which may have potenƟ al confl ict with the interests of the 
Company at large.  

A summary of materially signifi cant related party transacƟ ons is given in Note No.26B in the Notes to the Accounts 
appearing in this Report.

TransacƟ ons made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered with related parƟ es and exceeding the 
value of Rupees Five Lakhs in respect of each party during the fi nancial year have been made at prices which are 
reasonable with regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant Ɵ me.  All transacƟ ons menƟ oned herein have 
been conducted at arm’s length.
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Compliance Cer  fi cate
M/s Ravi and Subramanyam, Company Secretaries, Hyderabad, a fi rm of pracƟ cing Company Secretaries carried 
out the Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admiƩ ed capital with NaƟ onal SecuriƟ es Depository Limited (NSDL) 
and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital.  The Secretarial Audit report 
confi rms that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and 
the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

Strictures/Penalty:
There have been no major instances of non-compliance by the Company on any maƩ ers related to the Capital 
markets, nor have any penalty/strictures been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other 
statutory authority on such maƩ ers.

Whistle Blower policy:
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy wherein a proper mechanism is established in line with Clause 
49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement to report concerns about unethical behavior and violaƟ on of Code of Conduct of the 
Company.  No person has been denied access to the Audit CommiƩ ee in this regard.

Prepara  on of fi nancials statements:
The Company’s fi nancial statements are prepared as per AccounƟ ng Standards and the accounƟ ng principles generally 
accepted in India.

Rela  onship inter-se among the Directors:
There is no pecuniary relaƟ onship among the Directors inter-se and the Company has not entered into any transacƟ on 
with the Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors.

Risk Management:
The Board regularly discussed the signifi cant business risks idenƟ fi ed by the management and the miƟ gaƟ on process 
being taken up. A detailed note on the risk management is annexed to the Management Analysis & Discussion. 

Subsidiaries:
We have 13 subsidiary companies. None of them is a material non-listed Indian subsidiary as per Clause 49 of the 
LisƟ ng Agreement.

Proceeds from Public Issue, Preferen  al Issue, Rights Issue, etc.,
There was no Public Issue, PreferenƟ al Issue, Rights Issue during the year 2011-12.

Compliance with Mandaroty Requirements:
The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 and adopted certain non-mandatory 
requirements.

Non-Mandatory Requirement
Remunera  on Commi  ee:
The Board has consƟ tuted a RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee consisƟ ng of three Non-ExecuƟ ve Directors as members. 
It reviews and recommends to the Board on appointment/re-appointment and remuneraƟ on including perquisites, 
commission on profi ts to ExecuƟ ve Directors.

Whistle Blower Policy:
The Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a mechanism for employees to raise concerns, 
grievances, unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violaƟ on of the company’s code of conduct or ethics.  
This Policy also provides for adequate safeguard against vicƟ mizaƟ on of employees who avail of the mechanism and 
also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit CommiƩ ee in excepƟ onal cases.
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AddiƟ onals hareholder informaƟ on:
Means of CommunicaƟ on:

• The quarterly fi nancial results are being published in English Newspapers like Mint(All EdiƟ ons) having all 
India circulaƟ on and Eenadu, Andhra Jyothi & Andhra Prabha in Telugu being the vernacular language where 
the registered offi  ce is situated.

• The quarterly fi nancial results are also displayed on company’s website www.tanla.com and also of Stock 
Exchanges  www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com

• Annual Report also forms part of communicaƟ on which includes inter-alia the Director’s Report, Report on 
Corporate Governance and Annual Audited Financial Results.

General Shareholder’s InformaƟ on
 16th Annual General MeeƟ ng
    Date  : 28th September, 2012
    Day  : Friday
    Time  : 10:30 AM
    Venue  :       Tanla Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, 
       Madhapur, Hyderbad - 500081.
Financial Calender
For Quarter ending on June 30th, 2012  : Before August 14th, 2012
For Quarter ending on Sept 30th, 2012  : Before November 14th, 2012
For Quarter ending on Dec 31st, 2012  : Before February 14th, 2013
For Quarter ending on March 31st, 2013   : Before May 14th, 2013
Financial Year     : April 1st to March 31st

Date of Book Closure    : September 24th, 2012-September 28th, 2012 
       (both days Incluvise)

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:
The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited(BSE) and NaƟ onal Stock Exchange of India Limited(NSE)

Stock Code:
i) Trading Symbol at   :  Bombay Stock Exchange

       
Scrip Code: 532790

       NaƟ onal Stock Exchange
       TANLA
ii) Demat ISIN Numbers in 
 NSDL & CDSL    : INE483C01032

LisƟ ng and Custodial fee:
LisƟ ng fee as prescribed has been paid fully to all Stock Exchanges where shares of the company are listed.
The company has paid custodial fee for the year 2011-12 to the NaƟ onal SecuriƟ es Depository Limited and  
Central Depository Services (India) Limited.
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Stock Market Data from April 2011 to March 2012

Month
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited NaƟ onal Stock Exchange  of India Limited

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) No.of Shares Traded High(Rs.) Low (Rs.) No.of Shares Traded

April 2011 19.75 16.30 12 23 835 19.30 16.35 16 08 305

May 2011 16.95 14.75 9 75 484 17.00 14.15 16 47 456

June 2011 15.70 13.00 7 89 824 15.45 12.95 14 82 854

July 2011 17.45 13.60 18 57 955 17.45 13.50 43 11 411

August 2011 14.95 9.25 18 98 774 14.70 9.20 42 76 762

September 2011 10.50 7.93 12 67 827 10.55 7.90 29 26 126

October 2011 8.10 6.60 13 77 207 8.00 6.60 35 31 269

November 2011 10.26 6.55 24 62 538 10.30 6.55 43 10 008

December 2011 7.50 5.41 9 18 759 7.55 5.45 19 94 187

January 2012 7.65 5.62 15 64 679 7.65 5.80 34 07 367

February 2012 10.52 6.97 33 72 809 10.50 6.70 68 32 897

March 2012 8.33 6.40 11 25 143 8.50 6.50 20 05 871

Chart PresenƟ ng The Share Price Movement of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited Vs Sensex

Address for correspondence with the Registrar and Transfer Agents:
M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited
(Unit: Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited)
Plot No.17-24, ViƩ al Rao Nagar, Madhapur,
Hyderabad – 500081.
Ph: 040-23420815-28
Fax: 040-23420814

DematerializaƟ on of Shares and Liquidity:
Over 99.13% of the outstanding shares were dematerialized as on March 31, 2012.  Trading in equity shares of the company is 
permiƩ ed only in dematerialized form as per the provisions of the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).  The Company’s 
shares are liquid and acƟ vely traded.  The monthly volume of the Company’s shares traded on the Stock Exchanges is a part of 
this report.
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any ConverƟ ble Instruments:
As on March 31, 2012, the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants on any converƟ ble instruments.

BSE  Sensex

Share Price
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DistribuƟ on of Shareholding as on March 31st 2012:

No. of Shares held Shareholders Share(s) of Re.1 (Par Value)

Number % Number %

Upto 5000 85 509 98.45% 3 24 68 636 31.99%

5001-10000 753 0.87% 55 20 924 5.44%

10001-20000 325 0.37% 46 77 544 4.61%

20001-30000 95 0.11% 23 07 072 2.27%

30001-40000 42 0.05% 14 37 130 1.42%

40001-50000 18 0.02% 8 47 577 0.84%

50001-100000 57 0.07% 40 93 102 4.03%

100001 & Above 52 0.06% 5 01 27 608 49.40%

Total 86 851 100.00% 10 14 79 593 100.00%

Shareholding paƩ ern as on March 31st 2012:

S. No. Category No. of Shares of Re.1/- each Percentage

1 Promoters 3 47 13 044 34.21

2 Foreign InsƟ tuƟ onal Investors 10 06 360  0.99

3 Bodies Corporate 1 60 38 586 15.80

4 Indian Public 4 66 95 522 46.02

5 NRI 13 14 292 1.30

6 Trusts 11 788 0.01

7 Clearing Members 63 078 0.06

8 Foreign NaƟ onals 16 35 423 1.61

9 Overseas Corporate Bodies 1 500 0.00

                                              Total 10 14 79 593 100.00

Company’s Registered Address  &  Address for Shareholder’s General Correspondence:

The Company Secretary,
Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited, 
Tanla Technology Centre,
Hi-tech City Road, Madhapur, 
Hyderabad – 500 081.
Ph.No.040- 4009 9999
Fax No.040 – 2312 2999
Email: investorhelp@tanla.com
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Nithya Kalyani
Associate Partner

C.P. No.  10712

CerƟ fi cate from a Company Secretary in Whole-Ɵ me PracƟ ce on compliance of condiƟ ons of 
Corporate Governance as per Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with Stock Exchanges

To,
The Members
M/s. Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited
Hyderabad

We have examined the compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance by Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited for the 
year ended on March 31, 2012, for which we have obtained relevant informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of cerƟ fi caƟ on, as sƟ pulated in Clause 49 
of the LisƟ ng Agreement with Stock Exchanges in India.

The compliance of condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management.  
Our examinaƟ on has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementaƟ on thereof adopted by the 
Company for ensuring compliance of the condiƟ ons of Corporate Governance as sƟ pulated in the said clause.  
It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the fi nancial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us and the 
representaƟ on made by the Directors and the management, we cerƟ fy that the Company has complied with the 
condiƟ ons of the Corporate Governance as sƟ pulated in Clause 49 of the above menƟ oned LisƟ ng Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 
the effi  ciency or eff ecƟ veness, with which the management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

         
                       For BS & Co, Company Secretaries
                                                                                                                    Sd/-

DeclaraƟ on of Compliance with the Code of Conduct
This is to confi rm that the Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior management 
personnel of the company who have affi  rmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the 
fi nancial year ended on March 31, 2012, as envisaged in clause 49 of the lisƟ ng agreement with stock exchanges.

The Code of Conduct has also been posted on the website of the company www.tanla.com.

Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy

Chairman & Managing Director
Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 14 , 2012

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 14 , 2012
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CMD & CFO cerƟ fi caƟ on  under Clause 49 of the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges

In relaƟ on to the Audited Financial Accounts of the Company as at March 31, 2012, we hereby cerƟ fy that:

 a) We have reviewed fi nancial statements and the cash fl ow statement for the year and that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief:

  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain  
statements that might be misleading.

  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s aff airs and are in compliance 
with exisƟ ng accounƟ ng standards, applicable laws and regulaƟ ons.

 b) There are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transacƟ ons entered into by the Company during 
the year which are fraudulent, illegal and violaƟ ve of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

 c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for fi nancial reporƟ ng and 
we have evaluated the eff ecƟ veness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to fi nancial 
reporƟ ng and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩ ee, defi ciencies in the design 
oroperaƟ on of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken  or propose 
to take to recƟ fy these defi ciencies.

 d) We have indicated it to the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩ ee, signifi cant changes, if any; internal control 
over fi nancial reporƟ ng during the year in accounƟ ng policies during the year and that the same have 
been disclosed in the notes to the  fi nancial statements and instances of signifi cant fraud of which we 
have become aware and  the involvement  therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a 
signifi cant role in the Company’s internal control system over fi nancial reporƟ ng.

 Sd/-
D. Uday Kumar Reddy
Chairman & Managing Director

 Sd/-
Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad
Date : August 14, 2012
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of 
TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED,

1. We have audited the aƩ ached Balance Sheet of TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, as at March 31, 2012, and also the related 
Profi t and Loss account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These fi nancial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
fi nancial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the audiƟ ng standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporƟ ng the amounts and disclosures in 
the fi nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounƟ ng principles used and signifi cant esƟ mates made 
by management, as well as evaluaƟ ng the overall fi nancial statement presentaƟ on. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 as amended (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-secƟ on (4A) of secƟ on 227 of  the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’), we enclose in the Annexure, a 
statement on the maƩ ers specifi ed in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph (3) above, we report that:

(i) We have obtained all the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit;

(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as appears from our 
examinaƟ on of those books;

(iii) The Balance Sheet, Profi t and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 
books of account;

(iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profi t and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with 
the accounƟ ng standards referred to in sub-secƟ on (3C) of secƟ on 211 of the Act.

(v) On the basis of wriƩ en representaƟ ons received from the directors, as on March 31, 2012 and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualifi ed as on 31st March 2012 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of clause (g) of sub-secƟ on (1) of secƟ on 274 of the Act.

(vi) In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟ on and according to the explanaƟ ons given to us, the said accounts together 
with the notes thereon give the informaƟ on required by the Act, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounƟ ng principles generally accepted in India:

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of aff airs of the Company as at March 31, 2012;

(b) In the case of the Profi t and Loss Account, of the Loss for the year ended on that date; and 

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.

          For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
           Chartered Accountants
            Firm Regn No: 010396S
            
            Sd/-
           (C.V KOTESWARA RAO)
Place : Hyderabad                                     Partner
Date  : August 14, 2012                         Membership No.28353
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report (referred to in paragraph 3 of our Report of even date to the Members of 
Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited for the year ended March 31, 2012)

1. (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟ culars including quanƟ taƟ ve details and situaƟ on of fi xed 
assets.

 (b) Fixed Assets were physically verifi ed by the management during the year by the management in accordance with a 
regular programme of verifi caƟ on which, in our opinion, the verifi caƟ on is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noƟ ced on such verifi caƟ on.

 c) No substanƟ al part of fi xed assets has been disposed off  during the year.

2.     In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company not having any inventory.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

3. a) The Company has taken  Un-secured loan amount of Rs.7.43 Crores  from  it’s subsidiary company  Tanla Mobile 
 Private Limited, the  company covered in the register maintained under SecƟ on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, 
 the total amount of loan has been  repaid  during the year. 

 b) According to informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons obtained from the company, In our opinion , the repayment schedule and 
terms & condiƟ ons are not pre judicial to the interest of the company.

4.  On the basis of checks carried out during the course of audit and as per explanaƟ ons given to us, we are of the opinion that 
there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business; 
for the purchases of inventory and fi xed assets and for the sale of goods. During the course of our audit, no major weakness 
has been noƟ ced in the internal controls. 

5. a) In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, we are of the opinion that the transacƟ ons 
that need to entered into the register maintained under SecƟ on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered.

 b) In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, transacƟ ons made in pursuance of 
contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under SecƟ on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and 
exceeding the value of Rupees fi ve lakhs in respect of each party during the year have been made at prices which are 
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant Ɵ me.

6. In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits 
with in the meaning of SecƟ ons 58A and 58AA of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 1975 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public. 

7. In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

8. To the best our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under 
SecƟ on 209 (i) (d) of the of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the Company’s nature of business.

9. (a) According to the records of the company, the company is regular in deposiƟ ng undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Customs Duty, Excise duty, cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable at the end of the year for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

 (b) According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, there are no income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, customs duty 
and excise duty, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except in case of Service Tax Liability for 
the period 01.06.2007 to 31.10.2009 of Rs.6,85,81,618 (out of this Rs.1,93,68,932/- paid) pending before the CESTAT. 
There were no dues on account of cess under 441A of the Companies Act 1956, since the date from which the aforesaid 
secƟ on comes into force has not yet been noƟ fi ed by the Central Government.

10. The company does not have the accumulated losses as at the end of the fi nancial year and it has incurred cash losses 
during the current fi nancial year covered by our audit and the company has not incurred cash losses immediately preceding 
fi nancial year.

11. Based on our audit procedures and on the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given by the management, we are of the opinion 
that the company did not have any outstanding dues to fi nancial InsƟ tuƟ ons, Banks or Debenture holders.
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12. According to the informaƟ on and expiaƟ ons given to us, the Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis 
of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securiƟ es.

13.   In our opinion, the Company is not a chit or a nidhi / mutual benefi t fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

14. The company is not in the business of dealing or trading in shares, securiƟ es, debenture and other instruments. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

15. The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or fi nancial insƟ tuƟ ons.

16.   The company has not availed any term loans from the banks. Hence disclosure under this clause is not required

17.  Based on our examinaƟ on of the balance sheet of the company as at 31.03.2012, since there are no loans availed by
the company, the uƟ lizaƟ on of funds does not arise.

18.  The company has not made any preferenƟ al allotment of shares to parƟ es and companies covered in the register maintained 
under secƟ on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

19.   During the year covered by our audit report, the Company does not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

20.   During the year the company has not raised any money through public issue.

21. Based upon the audit procedures performed and informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given by the management, we report 
that no fraud on or by the company has been noƟ ced or reported during the course of our audit.

          For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
           Chartered Accountants
            Firm Regn No: 010396S
           
            Sd/-
           (C.V KOTESWARA RAO)
Place : Hyderabad                                     Partner
Date  : August 14, 2012                       Membership No.28353
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In terms of our report aƩ ached 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
Chief Technical Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  

ParƟ culars Note March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
1 Shareholders' Funds  

(a)  Share Capital 3  10 14 79 593  10 14 79 593 
(b)  Reserves and Surplus 4  616 42 24 834  627 00 98 828 

 626 57 04 427 637 15 78 421

2 Non-current liabiliƟ es
  Other long-term liabiliƟ es   2 00 66 614  -   

3 Current liabiliƟ es
(a) Trade payables 5 5 28 10 212 10 12 12 084
(b) Other current liabiliƟ es 6 11 17 12 928 1 17 60 662
(c) Short-term provisions 7 - 1 18 33 409

TOTAL   645 02 94 181  649 63 84 576 
 

B ASSETS  
1 Non-Current Assets  

(a) Fixed Assets
(i)    Tangible Assets  8  53 80 28 633  64 94 86 378 
(ii)   Capital Work-in-progress  10 90 47 949  35 94 08 550 
(iii)  Intangible assets under development  6 33 60 631  9 51 06 303 

 71 04 37 213  110 40 01 231 
(b) Non-current investments 9  465 88 20 591  450 39 49 985 
(c)  Deferred tax assets (net) 25  5 94 36 060  2 43 08 351 
(d) Other non-current assets 10 1 93 68 932   1 93 68 932

 544 80 62 796  565 16 28 499 
2 Current Assets    

(a)  Trade receivables 11 46 93 28 367  27 44 27 296 
(b)  Cash and cash equivalents 12 41 44 96 786 21 38 07 024 
(c)  Short-term Loans and advances 13 11 84 06 233 35 65 21 757

 100 22 31 386  84 47 56 077 

TOTAL  645 02 94 181  649 63 84 576 
See accompanying notes forming part of the fi nancial 
statements

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD.
Balance Sheet as at                                                                                                               In Rs.

Standalone

Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-Sd/-
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ParƟ culars Note March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

A CONTINUING OPERATIONS
1 Revenue from operaƟ ons 14  36 83 28 675  28 70 50 801 
2 Other income 15  49 18 636  53 40 458 

3 Total Revenue (1 + 2)  37 32 47 311  29 23 91 259 

4 EXPENDITURE
(a)  Cost of services 16  24 52 56 023  8 22 16 256 
(b)  Employee Benefi ts expense 17  6 89 20 023  2 34 45 055 
(c)  DepreciaƟ on and AmorƟ saƟ on expense 8  13 93 47 846  31 21 72 843 
(d)  AdverƟ sement expense  18  13 02 937  13 69 724 
(e)  Other Expenses  19  5 94 22 186  12 54 72 044 

Total Expenses  51 42 49 015  54 46 75 921 

5 Profi t / (Loss) before excepƟ onal and extraordinary items and tax (3 - 4)  (14 10 01 704)  (25 22 84 662)
6 ExcepƟ onal items  -    -   
7 Profi t / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax  (5 +_ 6)  (14 10 01 704)  (25 22 84 662)
8 Extraordinary items  -    -   
9 Profi t / (Loss)  before Tax (7 +_ 8)  (14 10 01 704)  (25 22 84 662)

10 Tax expense :
(a) Current Tax  -    -   
(b) Deferred Tax  (3 51 27 709)  (7 37 93 030)

11 Profi t / (Loss) from conƟ nuing operaƟ ons (9 +_ 10)  (10 58 73 995)  (17 84 91 632)
B DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

12 Profi t / (Loss) from disconƟ nuing operaƟ ons(before tax)  -    -   
13 Profi t / (Loss) from disconƟ nuing operaƟ ons - -
C TOTAL OPERATIONS

14 Profi t / (Loss) for the year (11 +_ 13)  (10 58 73 995)  (17 84 91 632)
15.i Earnings per share (of Re.1/- each):

(a) Basic
(i)  ConƟ nuing operaƟ ons  (1.04)  (1.76)
(ii) Total operaƟ ons  (1.04)  (1.76)

(b) Diluted
(i)  ConƟ nuing operaƟ ons  (1.04)  (1.76)
(ii) Total operaƟ ons  (1.04)  (1.76)

15.ii Earnings per share (excluding extraordinary items) (of Re.1/- each):
(a) Basic

(i)  ConƟ nuing operaƟ ons  (1.04)  (1.76)
(ii) Total operaƟ ons  (1.04)  (1.76)

(b) Diluted
(i)  ConƟ nuing operaƟ ons  (1.04)  (1.76)
(ii) Total operaƟ ons  (1.04)  (1.76)

See accompanying notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD.
Profi t & Loss account for the year ended                                                                                                                  In Rs.

In terms of our report aƩ ached 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

Satish Kathirisetti
Chief Technical Officer

Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  

Standalone

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-Sd/-
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 ParƟ culars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profi t before taxaƟ on and extraodinary items  (14 10 01 703)  (25 22 84 661)
Adjusted for :       

DepreciaƟ on  13 93 47 846  26 41 51 439 
Interest & other income received  (49 18 636)  (53 40 458)

Public issue expenses & goodwill w/o    - 4 80 21 403

OperaƟ ng profi ts before working capital changes  (65 72 494)  5 45 47 723 
  Changes in current assets and liabiliƟ es       

Products under development 3 17 45 672 (6 33 60 633)
Sundry debtors (19 49 01 070) 14 77 96 447
Loans and advances 23 81 15 524 19 37 29 118
Current liabilites and provisions  7 16 17 008 8 86 73 402

Cash generrated from operaƟ ons 14 00 04 640 42 13 86 057

    Income taxes paid - 23 45 84 410

Net cash generated from operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es 14 00 04 640 18 68 01 647
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       

Purchase of fi xed assets and change in capital work-in-progress  22 24 70 501  27 34 86 221 
Purchase of investments (15 48 70 606)  (62 21 94 536)

Interest & Other income received  49 18 636  53 40 458

Net cash used in invesƟ ng acƟ viƟ es  7 25 18 531  (34 33 67 857)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       

Dividends and dividend tax paid during the year (1 18 33 408) (1 18 72 605)
Net Cash generated from fi nancing acƟ viƟ es (1 18 33 408) (1 18 72 605)

D Net increase / (decrease)  in cash and cash equivalents  20 06 89 762  (16 84 38 815)

E Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21 38 07 024 38 22 45 839

F Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 41 44 96 787 21 38 07 024

See accompanying notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

In terms of our report aƩ ached 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
Chief Technical Offi  cer

Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended                                                                                                                                                                          In Rs.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-Sd/-

Standalone
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD         
Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements 

        
Note    
1 Corporate informaƟ on       
 Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla”) was incorporated on July 28th, 1995 in Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh. Tanla 

has its headquarters and development faciliƟ es in Hyderabad, India, and serves a global customer base through its subsidiaries. Tanla’s 
range of services include product development and implementaƟ on in wireless telephony industry, aggregator services and off shore 
development services.       

2 Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies
2.1 Basis of preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements         
 The accompanying fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted AccounƟ ng Principles (GAAP) 

under the historical cost convenƟ on, on a going concern basis, while revenue, expenses, assets and liabiliƟ es are accounted/recognized 
on accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounƟ ng standards issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by the SecuriƟ es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). AccounƟ ng policies are 
consistently applied except where a newly issued accounƟ ng standard is iniƟ ally adopted or a revision to an exisƟ ng accounƟ ng standard 
requires a change in the accounƟ ng policy hitherto in use.

Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounƟ ng standards on an on going basis.

2.2 Use of AccounƟ ng EsƟ mates
 The preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires Management to make esƟ mates and 

assumpƟ ons that aff ect the reported balances of assets and liabiliƟ es and disclosures relaƟ ng to conƟ ngent assets and 
liabiliƟ es as at the date of the fi nancial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. 
Examples of such esƟ mates include provisions for doubƞ ul debts, future obligaƟ ons under reƟ rement  benefi t  plans, income taxes, post-
sales customer support and the useful lives of fi xed assets and intangible assets. 

 Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources whether there is an indicaƟ on that an asset may be impaired. 
ConƟ ngencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the amount can be reasonably esƟ mated. Actual results 
could diff er from those esƟ mates.

2.3 Revenue recogniƟ on       
 Revenue from soŌ ware development on fi xed-price, fi xed-Ɵ me frame contracts where there is no uncertainty as to measurement 

or collectability has been recognized. On Ɵ me-and-material contracts, revenue is recognized as the related services are rendered. 
Provision for esƟ mated losses, if any on incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on 
the current contract esƟ mates. Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fi xed-price maintenance contracts are recognized 
proporƟ onately over the period in which services are rendered. Revenue from the sale of products for soŌ ware applicaƟ ons is recognized 
on transfer of the products to the users.       

2.4 Fixed assets, intangible assets and capital work-in-progress      
 Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciaƟ on. All direct costs are capitalized unƟ l fi xed assets are ready for use including 

taxes, duƟ es, freight and other incidental expenses relaƟ ng to acquisiƟ on and installaƟ on. Capital work-in-progress comprises outstanding 
advances paid to acquire fi xed assets and the cost of fi xed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date. 
Intangible assets are recorded at the consideraƟ on paid for acquisiƟ on.        
   

2.5    DepreciaƟ on and AmorƟ zaƟ on       
 DepreciaƟ on on fi xed assets is applied on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of usage, in accordance with the rates prescribed 

under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.       
2.6 Employee Benefi ts
 Defi ned ContribuƟ on Plans
 a.Gratuity 
 In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Tanla provides for gratuity, a defi ned reƟ rement plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering 

the eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at reƟ rement, death, incapacitaƟ on or 
terminaƟ on of employment, of an amount based on the respecƟ ve employees salary and the tenure of  employment. 

 Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan is determined by actuarial valuaƟ on as of the balance sheet date, based upon which, the company 
contributes the ascertained liabiliƟ es to the Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited Employees Gratuity Scheme Trust (the “Trust”) managed by the Life 
Insurance CorporaƟ on of India.

b.Provident fund 
 Eligible employees receive benefi ts from a provident fund, which is a defi ned contribuƟ on plan. Aggregate contribuƟ ons along with  

interest thereon is paid at reƟ rement, death, incapacitaƟ on or terminaƟ on of employment. Both the employee and the company make 
monthly contribuƟ ons to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner equal to a specifi ed percentage of the covered employee’s salary. 

c. Employee State Insurance Fund: 
 Eligible employees (whose gross salary is less than Rs.15 000 per month) are  enƟ tled to receive benefi ts under employee state insurance 

fund scheme. The employer makes contribuƟ on to the scheme at a predetermined rate (presently 4.75%) of employee’s gross salary. Tanla 
has no further obligaƟ ons under the plan beyond its monthly contribuƟ ons. These contribuƟ ons are made to the fund administered and 
managed by the Government of India. Tanla’s monthly contribuƟ ons are charged to income in the year it is incurred.

       
2.7 Research and Development        
 Revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is expensed as incurred. Capital expenditure incurred on research and 

development is depreciated on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of usage, in accordance with the rates prescribed under 
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.            

2.8 Foreign Currency TransacƟ ons       
 The company translates all foreign currency transacƟ ons at Exchange Rates prevailing on the date of transacƟ ons. Exchange rate diff erences 

resulƟ ng from foreign exchange transacƟ ons seƩ led during the year are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they 
arise. Monetary current assets and monetary current liabiliƟ es that are denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange 
rate prevalent at the date of the balance sheet. The resulƟ ng diff erence is also recorded in the profi t and loss account.  

Standalone
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2.9 Taxes on Income
 Income taxes are computed using the tax eff ect accounƟ ng method, in accordance with the AccounƟ ng Standard (AS 22) “AccounƟ ng 

for Taxes on Income” which includes current taxes and deferred taxes. Deferred income taxes refl ect the impact of current year Ɵ ming 
diff erences between taxable income and accounƟ ng income for the year and the relevant Ɵ ming diff erence of earlier years. Deferred tax 
asset and liabiliƟ es are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset / liability is realized, based on 
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substanƟ vely enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred Tax assets are recognized 
and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

 
2.10 Earning Per Share (EPS)       
 In determining earnings per share, the company considers the net profi t aŌ er tax expense. The number of shares used in compuƟ ng basic 

earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.        
      

2.11 Investments       
 Long term trade investments are stated at cost & all other investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value.  
      
2.12 Cash fl ow statement 
 Cash fl ows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profi t before tax is adjusted for the eff ects of transacƟ ons of a non-

cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash fl ows from regular revenue generaƟ ng, 
invesƟ ng and fi nancing acƟ viƟ es of the company are segregated.     

Note Particulars
As at March 31, 2012 As at March 31, 2011

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
3 SHARE CAPITAL     
 (a) Authorised     
       Equity shares of Re. 1 each 12 00 00 000 12 00 00 000 12 00 00 000 12 00 00 000 
 (b)  Issued Subscribed and fully paid up:     
         Equity Shares of Re.1 each fully paid-up 10 14 79 593 10 14 79 593 101,479,593 10 14 79 593 
     

In Rs.

Note Particulars As at March 31, 2012 As at March 31, 2011

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Share Premium  428 55 01 775  428 55 01 775 
Investment subsidy  4 00 000  4 00 000 
General reserve  24 98 04 978 24 98 04 978 
Surplus / (Defi cit) in Statement of Profi t and Loss 

Opening balance  173 43 92 074  192 47 17 114 
Add: Profi t / (Loss) for the year  (10 58 73 994)  (17 84 91 631)

 162 85 18 080  174 62 25 483 
Less: Proposed dividend for the year - 1 01 47 959
Less: Tax on dividend - 16 85 449
Closing balance  1 62 85 18 080  173 43 92 074 

Closing Balance  616 42 24 834  627 00 98 828 
5  TRADE PAYABLES 

         Other than acceptances 5 28 10 212 10 12 12 084 
5 28 10 212 10 12 12 084 

6  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
         Other LiabiliƟ es  11 17 12 928  1 17 60 662 

 11 17 12 928  1 17 60 662 
7  SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS  

         Proposed dividend - 1 01 47 959
         Provision for dividend tax - 16 85 449

- 1 18 33 408

In Rs.
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Note                                                         ParƟ culars As at March 31, 2012 As at March 31, 2011

9 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

In Equity/Preference Shares (Un-quoted at cost)

Mufi thumb Entertainment Pvt.Ltd., India 71 74 000 71 74 000

      (2,50,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid-up)

Tanla SoluƟ ons (UK) Ltd., UK 2 52 00 000  2 52 00 000

      (1000 equity shares of GBP 1 each, fully paid-up)

Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd., Singapore

     (750,001 equity shares of SGD 1 each, fully paid-up) 3 09 28 916 3 09 28 916

     (146,846,107 Preference shares of SGD 1 each, fully paid-up) 457  51 68 675 442 02 98 069

TZ Mobile Pvt Ltd, India 1 03 49 000 1 03 49 000

     (1,03,490 equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid-up)

Tanla Mobile Pvt Ltd, India 1 00 00 000 1 00 00 000

     (10,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid-up)

Total 465 88 20 591 450 39 49 985

10 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 
Balances with government authoriƟ es Unsecured, considered good
Service tax input credit  1 93 68 932  1 93 68 932 

Total  1 93 68 932  1 93 68 932 

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

     (Unsecured and considered good)

     Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months  33 09 80 074  17 43 78 138 

     Other Trade receivables  13 83 48 292 10 00 49 158

Total  46 93 28 367 27 44 27 296

12 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash on hand  32 727 19 836

Balances with banks:

       (i)   in current accounts**  16 75 00 116 21 14 41 652

       (ii)  in EEFC accounts 13 56 52 600 3 56 911

       (iii) in deposit accounts
** includes balances in Unclaimed Dividend accounts Rs. 12 57 039 (2010-11 
Rs. 10 16 646)

 11 13 11 343 19 88 625

Total  41 44 96 786 21 38 07 024

13 SHORTTERM LOANS & ADVANCES

       Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received  5 83 68 551  31 98 82 580 

       Deposits with others  1 34 15 953  1 38 62 237 

       Advance income tax & TDS  4 66 21 729  2 27 76 940 

Total  11 84 06 233 35 65 21 757

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED         
Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements         
 In Rs.
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Note                                                                ParƟ culars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2012
For the period ended 

March 31, 2011
14 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Overseas  14 15 01 021  19 07 09 339 
DomesƟ c : India  22 68 27 654  9 63 41 462 

Total  36 83 28 675  28 70 50 801 

15 OTHER INCOME
Interest on Deposits with Banks (Gross)  (Tax deducted at 
source of Rs. 374,466 (31.03.2011: Rs. 408,954)

 37 44 644  12 73 351 

Interest received from others  -    31 54 174 
Misc Income  11 73 992  9 12 934 

Total  49 18 636  53 40 458 
16 COST OF SERVICES

Cost of Services  24 52 56 023  8 22 16 256 
Total  24 52 56 023  8 22 16 256 

17 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries & Wages   6 89 20 023  2 34 45 055 

Total  6 89 20 023  2 34 45 055 
ADVERTISEMENT EXPENSES

AdverƟ sement Expenses 13 02 937 13 69 724

Total 13 02 937 13 69 724

19 OTHER EXPENSES
Travelling expenses 1 37 62 785 72 39 784
Communicaiton expenses 39 29 961 35 37 253
Repairs & maintenance expenses 45 26 088 50 30 889
Rent, rates & taxes 1 55 00 447 31 45 040
PrinƟ ng & staƟ onery 10 36 019 12 85 370
Offi  ce maintennce expenses 9 70 070 6 31 709
Power & fuel 30 02 578 30 32 279
General expenses 15 97 137 2 85 54 605
Professional charges 53 58 209 91 02 746
R&D Expenses 41 43 789 52 39 840
Auditors remuneraƟ on 10 00 000 10 00 000
Finance & bank charges 3 43 176 6 64 476
Loss on sale of vehicles / discarded assets - 3 51 08 974
Exchange fl uctuaƟ on 42 51 927 2 18 99 079

Total  5 94 22 186  12 54 72 044 

20
 
  
 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
S.No. ParƟ culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011
1 Outstanding guarantees given by the company Nil 16 50 000 

2 Claims against company, not acknowledged as debts**      8 28 22 050 8 97 95 222 

3 Claims made by company, not acknowledged as debts  Nil  Nil 

4 Corporate Guarantee given to subsidiary companies  Nil  Nil 

Segment ReporƟ ng        
 i) Business Segment:       
       
The Company is engaged in telecom infrastructure and related value added services business and its operaƟ ons consƟ tute a single 
segment in the context of AccounƟ ng Standard (AS17) "Segment ReporƟ ng"

21

18

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED         
Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements                             In Rs.

** Represents Service Tax

Standalone



36
Annual Report 2011 - 12

22 Related Party Disclosures:

A) List of Related ParƟ es:

Name of the Related Party Country RelaƟ onship with the EnƟ ty

Tanla SoluƟ ons (UK) Limited UK Wholly-owned subsidiary

Tanla Mobile South Africa Pty Limited South Africa Wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd

Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Limited Singapore Wholly-owned subsidiary

Tanla Mobile Ireland Private Limited Ireland Wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd

Tanla Mobile Middle East FZ LLC UAE Wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd

Tanla Oy Finland Wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Finland Oy

Tanla Mobile Private Limited India Wholly-owned subsidiary

TZ Mobile Private Limited India Joint Venture with ZED Worldwide Holdings S.L. Spain

B) List of TransacƟ ons with Related ParƟ es: 

Refer note 26B of notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED         
Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

List of TransacƟ ons with Key Management Personnel  

Name Salary and 
allowances

ContribuƟ ons to 
provident and 

other funds

Perquisites 
and 

incenƟ ves

Total 
remuneraƟ on

Mr.D. Uday Kumar Reddy -  Chairman & Managing Director 45 63 253 2 30 080 14 400 48 07 733

Mr.K. SaƟ sh, Chief Technical Offi  cer 40 56 975 2 04 553 14 400 42 75 928

Mr.Anoop Roy Kundal,  Director – OperaƟ ons 21 42 000 1 08 000 14 400 22 64 400

Mr.Amit Gupta, Director – Finance 11 04 320 85 680 14 400 12 04 400

Mr.Navnit Chachan, Chief OperaƟ ng Offi  cer 6 00 000 28 800 14 400 6 43 200

Total  1 24 66 548           6 57 113         72 000 1 31 95 661 

RemuneraƟ on to non-execuƟ ve directors

Name Siƫ  ng Fees Reimbursement of Expenses Total
Mr.Abhishek Khaitan - Director  -    -    -   

Dr. Sudhanshu Shekhar Jamuar - Director  30 000  -    30 000 

Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal - Director  50 000  -    50 000 

Mr. Surjeet Kumar Palhan - Director  10 000  -    10 000 

Total  90 000  -    90 000 

Consolidated RemuneraƟ on
ParƟ culars Year ended March 31, 2012 Year ended March 31, 2011

Whole-Ɵ me directors

    Salary  1 24 66 548  97 36 898 

    ContribuƟ ons to provident and other funds  6 57 113  5 46 650 

    Perquisites and incenƟ ves  72 000  72 000 

   Total  1 31 95 661  1 03 55 548 

Non-whole-Ɵ me directors

   Siƫ  ng fees  90 000  1 10 000 

   Reimbursement of expenses  -    -   

   Total  90 000  1 10 000 

Grand Total  1 32 85 661  1 04 65 548 

23

In Rs.

In Rs.

In Rs.
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED         
Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

Foreign Exchange earned and outgo                                                                                                                                                              In Rs.

a. Imports (valued on cost, insurance and freight basis)

ParƟ culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011

Import of capital goods     17 25 335  6 38 78 362 

b. AcƟ vity in foreign currency 

ParƟ culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011

Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

   Income from soŌ ware products and off shore development services  14 15 01 021  19 07 09 339 

   Dividends received  -    -   

   Interest received  -    -   

Expenditure in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

    Cost of services  11 83 02 811  2 25 03 713 

    Foreign Travel Expenses  22 33 634  15 58 238 

    Professional Charges  3 20 202  14 93 105 

Net earnings in foreign exchange  1 89 19 039  10 12 75 921 

24

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)
ParƟ culars 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11

i. Deferred tax liability

On account of depreciaƟ on  85 00 025  3 92 41 687 

ii. Deferred tax asset

On account of misc. expenses w/o  -    1 63 22 475 

On un-absorbed losses  6 79 36 085  4 72 27 563 

6 79 36 085 6 35 50 037

Net deferred tax liability / (Asset)  (5 94 36 060)  (2 43 08 351)

25

Earnings Per Share
ParƟ culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011

Net profi t aŌ er tax  (10 58 73 994)  (17 84 91 631)

Weighted average number of equity shares of Re.1 each  10 14 79 593  10 14 79 593 

Nominal value of shares Re.1 Re.1

Earnings per share (basic/diluted) Rs. (1.04) (1.76)

26

In terms of our report aƩ ached 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
Chief Technical Offi  cer

Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  

27 QuanƟ taƟ ve details
The Company is engaged in the business of development & maintenance of Computer SoŌ ware, off shore development and other 
related services. The producƟ on and sale of such soŌ ware services cannot be expressed in any generic unit and hence it is not 
possible to give such quanƟ taƟ ve details of sales and certain informaƟ on as required under paragraph 3,4C and 4D of Part II of 
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. The details of ConservaƟ on of Energy, Technology absorpƟ on are given in Directors Report. 
R&D expenditure is not separately accounted for.

In Rs.

In Rs.

Sd/-Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-Sd/-
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Auditors’ Report to the Board of Directors of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited and it’s Subsidiaries.

To

The Board of Directors of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited

1. We have audited the aƩ ached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited and its subsidiaries (collecƟ vely ‘the Group’), as at 

March 31, 2012, the Consolidated Profi t and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on the date 

annexed thereto, which we have signed under reference to this report. These Consolidated Financial Statements are the responsibility of 

Group’s management and has been prepared by the man agement on the basis of separate fi nancial statements and fi nancial informaƟ on 

regarding com  ponents. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fi nancial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with audiƟ ng standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in 

accordance with an idenƟ fi ed fi nancial reporƟ ng framework and are free of material mis-statement. An  audit includes examining, on a 

test basis, evidence supporƟ ng the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounƟ ng 

principles used and signifi cant esƟ mates made by management, as well as evaluaƟ ng the overall fi nancial statement presentaƟ on. We 

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Group’s management in accordance with the 

requirements of AccounƟ ng Standard (AS 21) “Consolidated Financial Statements”, issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants 

of India.

 

4. On the basis of the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and on consideraƟ on of the sepa rate reports on individual audited 

fi nancial statements of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited and its consolidated enƟ Ɵ es, in our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟ ng principles generally accepted in India:

     (a) In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the Consolidated state of aff airs of the Group as at March 31, 2012;

     (b) In the case of the Consolidated Profi t and Loss Account, of the Consolidated Loss of Group for the year ended on that date; and

     (c) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statements, of the Consolidated Cash Flows of Group for the year ended on that date.

          For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,
                       Chartered Accountants
             Firm Regn. No.010396S
 
 
 
                           (C.V KOTESWARA RAO)
Place : Hyderabad                                                                                                     Partner
Date  : August 14, 2012                                                                            Membership No.28353
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In terms of our report aƩ ached 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
Chief Technical Offi  cer

Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  

ParƟ culars Note March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  

1 Shareholders' Funds  

(a)  Share Capital 3  10 14 79 593  10 14 79 593 

(b)  Reserves and Surplus 4  681 14 78 764  780 54 26 102 

 691 29 58 357 790 69 05 695

2 Non-current liabiliƟ es

(a) Deferred tax liabiliƟ es (net) 5 - 3 09 66 448

(b) Other long-term liabiliƟ es 6  200 66 614  -   

(c) Long-term provisions 7 31 76 031 24 00 54 543

 

3 Current liabiliƟ es

(a) Trade payables 8 2 64 15 168 22 03 96 399

(b) Other current liabiliƟ es 9 6 82 47 716 20 57 54 322

  (c) Short term provisions 10 - 1 18 33 409

TOTAL  703 08 63 886 861 59 10 816

 

B ASSETS  

1 Non-Current Assets  

(a) Fixed Assets  

(i)    Tangible Assets 11 363 02 01 158 260 52 49 319

(ii)   Intangible Assets 12 35 29 41 187 62 49 71 262

(iii) Capital Work-in-progress 37 58 99 146 35 94 08 550

(iv)  Intangible assets under development 17 43 07 194 66 67 64 961

453 33 48 686 425 63 94 092

(b)  Deferred tax assets (net) 5 18 10 226 -

   (c)  Other non-current assets 13 1 93 68 932 1 93 68 932

455 45 27 844 427 57 63 024

2 Current Assets    

(a)  Trade receivables 14 148 16 64 705 164 73 73 126

(b)  Cash and cash equivalents 15 71 35 91 861 88 16 67 961

(c)  Short-term Loans and advances 16 28 10 79 477 181 11 06 704

2 47 63 36 043 434 01 47 791

TOTAL 703 08 63 886 861 59 10 816

See accompanying notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD.
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at                                                                                      In Rs.

Sd/-Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-Sd/-

Consolidated
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In terms of our report aƩ ached    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,     
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

 Sd/-
C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

 Sd/-
Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

 Sd/-
SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
Chief Technical Offi  cer

 Sd/-
Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

 Sd/-
Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  

ParƟ culars Note March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

A CONTINUING OPERATIONS
1 Revenue from operaƟ ons 17 178 11 14 747 296 52 27 025
2 Other income 18  1 62 96 825 1 04 48 290
3 Total Revenue (1 + 2) 179 74 11 572 297 56 75 315
4 EXPENDITURE

(a)  Cost of services 19 122 02 35 745 128 24 78 398
(b)  Employee Benefi ts expense 20 14 91 75 064 12 19 97 178
(c)  DepreciaƟ on and AmorƟ saƟ on expense 11 1 39 43 60 016 1 65 53 28 288
(d)  AdverƟ sement expense 21 8 19 86 579 58 66 16 784
(e)  Bad Debts provision 22 39 77 54 123 17 77 04 857
(f)  Other Expenses 23 16 35 07 592 36 82 68 112

Total Expenses 34 070 19 118 4 19 23 93 616

5 Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (3 - 4)  (160 96 07 546)  (121 67 18 301)
6 Exceptional items  -    -   
7 Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax  (5 +_ 6)  (160 96 07 546)  (121 67 18 301)
8 Extraordinary items  -    -   
9 Profit / (Loss)  Before Tax (7 +_ 8)  (160 96 07 546)  (121 67 18 301)

10 Tax expense :
(a) Current Tax 2 56 925 14 58 372
(b) Deferred Tax  (3 55 79 220)  (7 33 37 691)

11 Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations (9 +_ 10)  (157 42 85 251)  (114 48 38 982)
B DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

12 Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations (before tax) - -
13 Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations  -    -   
C TOTAL OPERATIONS

14 Profit / (Loss) for the year (11 +_ 13)  (157 42 85 251)  (114 48 38 982)
15.i Earnings per share (of Re.1/- each):

(a) Basic
(i) ConƟ nuing operaƟ ons  (15.51)  (11.28)
(ii) Total operaƟ ons  (15.51)  (11.28)

(b) Diluted
(i) ConƟ nuing operaƟ ons  (15.51)  (11.28)
(ii) Total operaƟ ons  (15.51)  (11.28)

15.ii Earnings per share (excluding extraordinary items) (of Re.1/- each):
(a) Basic

(i) ConƟ nuing operaƟ ons  (15.51)  (11.28)
(ii) Total operaƟ ons  (15.51)  (11.28)

(b) Diluted
(i) ConƟ nuing operaƟ ons  (15.51)  (11.28)
(ii) Total operaƟ ons  (15.51)  (11.28)

See accompanying notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD.
Consolidated Profi t & Loss account for the year ended                                                                               In Rs.

Consolidated



Annual Report 2011 - 12
41

In terms of our report aƩ ached    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,     
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

 Sd/-
C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

 Sd/-
Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

 Sd/-
SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
Chief Technical Offi  cer

 Sd/-
Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

 Sd/-
Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  

 ParƟ culars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net profi t before taxaƟ on, and extraodinary items  (160 96 07 546)  (121 67 18 301)

Adjusted for :       

DepreciaƟ on 106 31 62 323 143 21 47 075

Interest & other income received  (1 62 96 825)  (1 04 48 289)

Foreign Currency FluctuaƟ on - 14 14 50 237   

Provision for Gratuity - 13 55 659

Loss on sale of / discarded assets (net)  -   3 51 08 974

Public issue expenses & goodwill w/o 33 11 97 693   22 31 81 212

OperaƟ ng profi ts before working capital charges  (23 15 44 355) 60 60 76 567 

  Changes in current assets and liabiliƟ es       

Products under development 49 24 57 767 (30 55 88 801)

Sundry debtors 16 57 08 422 7 30 72 976

Loans and advances 153 00 27 228 1 66 83 018

Current liabilites and provisions (56 01 33 144) 17 10 90 601

Cash generrated from operaƟ ons 139 65 15 917 56 13 34 361

    Income taxes paid - 2 89 29 282

Net cash generated from operaƟ ng acƟ viƟ es 139 65 15 917 53 24 05 079

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:       

Purchase of fi xed assets and change in capital work-in-progress (216 59 21 141) (42 81 48 325)

Proceeds on sale of fi xed assets 97 25 000 2 43 000

Purchase of investments -  (25 13 67 911)

Interest received 1 62 96 825  1 04 48 289

Net cash used in invesƟ ng acƟ viƟ es (213 98 99 316)  (66 88 24 947)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       

Dividends and dividend tax paid during the year (1 18 33 409) (1 18 72 605)

Unrealised exchange gain/(loss) on conversion 58 71 40 708 (45 21 65 423)

Net Cash generated from fi nancing acƟ viƟ es 57 53 07 299 (46 40 38 028)

D Net increase / (decrease)  in cash and cash equivalents  (16 80 76 100) (60 04 57 895)

E Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 88 16 67 961 148 21 25 857

F Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 71 35 91 861 88 16 67 961

See accompanying notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended   

In Rs.

Consolidated
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD        
Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements         
  
1 Corporate informaƟ on       
 Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla”) was incorporated on July 28th, 1995 in Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh. Tanla has 

its headquarters and development faciliƟ es in India and serves a global customer base through its subsidiaries. Tanla’s range of services 
include product development and implementaƟ on in wireless telephony industry, aggregator services and off shore development services. 
      

 Tanla SoluƟ ons (UK) Limited, formerly Techserv Teleservices (UK) Limited, UK (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla UK”), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Tanla based at London, UK, provides aggregator and off shore development services to clients in telecommunicaƟ ons and 
off shore service sectors.

        
 Mufi  Thumb Entertainment  Private Limited, India (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Mufi  Thumb”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla based at 

Hyderabad, India, is engaged in development of products and services.
  
 Tanla Mobile Limited, formerly Mobizar Limited, UK (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Mobile”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla UK 

based at London, UK, provides aggregator services to clients in the telecommunicaƟ ons sector.      

 Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Limited, Singapore (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Singapore ”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla based at 
Singapore, provides aggregator and off shore development services to clients in telecommunicaƟ ons and off shore services sector.  
     

 Tanla Mobile Ireland Pvt Limited, Ireland (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Ireland”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Singapore based at 
Ireland, provides aggregator services to clients in the telecommunicaƟ ons sector.

 Tanla Mobile Middle East FZ LLC, Dubai (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Dubai”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Singapore based at 
Dubai, UAE, provides aggregator services to clients in the telecommunicaƟ ons sector.     

 Tanla Mobile Inc, USA (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Inc”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Singapore based at USA, provides 
aggregator services to clients in the telecommunicaƟ ons sector.       

 
 Tanla Mobile South Africa Proprietary Ltd, South Africa (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla South Africa”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla 

Singapore based at South Africa, provides aggregator services to clients in the telecommunicaƟ ons sector.   

 Tanla Mobile South Asia Pvt Ltd, Srilanka (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Srilanka”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Singapore based 
at Srilanka, provides aggregator services to clients in the telecommunicaƟ ons sector.     

 Tanla Mobile Spain SL, Spain (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Spain”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile based at Spain, provides 
aggregator services to clients in the telecommunicaƟ ons sector.       

 Tanla Mobile Finland Oy, Finland (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Finland”), is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Dubai based at Finland.

 Tanla Oy, Finland (hereinaŌ er referred to as “Tanla Oy”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla Finland, provides mobile payment soluƟ ons to 
clients in telecommunicaƟ ons and allied areas.       

 
 Tanla Mobile Private Limited, India (hereinaŌ er referred to as “TMPL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla, is involved in development of 

products and services for clients in the telecommunicaƟ ons sector.        
      

2 Signifi cant AccounƟ ng Policies       
2.1 Basis of preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements         
 The accompanying fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted AccounƟ ng Principles 

(GAAP) under the historical cost convenƟ on, on a going concern basis, while revenue, expenses, assets and liabiliƟ es are 
accounted/recognized on accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounƟ ng standards issued by the InsƟ tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI), the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by the SecuriƟ es and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI). AccounƟ ng policies are consistently applied except where a newly issued accounƟ ng standard is 
iniƟ ally adopted or a revision to an exisƟ ng accounƟ ng standard requires a change in the accounƟ ng policy hitherto in use.

 Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounƟ ng standards on an ongoing basis.
 
 The consolidated fi nancial statements of the Group have been prepared based on a line-by-line consolidaƟ on of the fi nancial statements 

of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited and its subsidiaries. All material inter-Company balances and transacƟ ons are eliminated on consolidaƟ on.
Assets and liabiliƟ es of subsidiaries are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing as at the Balance Sheet date. 
Revenues and Expenses are translated into Indian Rupees at average of the opening and closing rates.  

2.2 Use of AccounƟ ng EsƟ mates       
 The preparaƟ on of fi nancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires Management to make esƟ mates and assumpƟ ons that aff ect the 

reported balances of assets and liabiliƟ es and disclosures relaƟ ng to conƟ ngent assets and liabiliƟ es as at the date of the fi nancial statements 
and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Examples of such esƟ mates include provisions for doubƞ ul debts, future 
obligaƟ ons under reƟ rement benefi t plans, income taxes, post-sales customer support and the useful lives of fi xed assets and intangible assets.
Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources whether there is an indicaƟ on that an asset may be impaired. 
ConƟ ngencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability will be incurred, and the amount can be reasonably esƟ mated. Actual results 
could diff er from those esƟ mates.
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2.3 Revenue recogniƟ on       
 Revenue from soŌ ware development on fi xed-price, fi xed-Ɵ me frame contracts where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or 

collectability has been recognized. On Ɵ me-and-material contracts, revenue is recognized as the related services are rendered. Provision 
for esƟ mated losses, if any on incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current 
contract esƟ mates. Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fi xed-price maintenance contracts are recognized proporƟ onately 
over the period in which services are rendered. Revenue from the sale of products for soŌ ware applicaƟ ons is recognized on transfer of the 
products to the users.

2.4 Fixed Assets, intangible assets and capital work-in-progress      
 Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciaƟ on. All direct costs are capitalized unƟ l fi xed assets are ready for use including 

taxes, duƟ es, freight and other incidental expenses relaƟ ng to acquisiƟ on and installaƟ on. Capital work-in-progress comprises outstanding 
advances paid to acquire fi xed assets, and the cost of fi xed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date. 
Intangible assets are recorded at the consideraƟ on paid for acquisiƟ on.

2.5 DepreciaƟ on, AmorƟ zaƟ on and Goodwill write off        
a) DepreciaƟ on on fi xed assets is applied on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of usage, in accordance with the rates prescribed 

under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, except on fi xed assets of Tanla UK, Tanla Singapore and their subsidiaries.
b) On the fi xed assets of Tanla UK, Tanla Singapore and their subsidiaries, depreciaƟ on is provided on Straight Line Method. The applicable 

rates are based on the local laws and pracƟ ces of the respecƟ ve countries.
c) Goodwill has been recognized on consolidaƟ on of investment in Tanla Oy with the parent company and the same is to be wriƩ en off  

over a period of 4 years.        
2.6 Employee Benefi ts       
 Defi ned ContribuƟ on Plans       

a) Gratuity: 
 In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Tanla provides for gratuity, a defi ned reƟ rement plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering 

the eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at reƟ rement, death, incapacitaƟ on or 
terminaƟ on of employment, of an amount based on the respecƟ ve employee salary and the tenure of employment. Liability with regard 
to the Gratuity Plan is determined by actuarial valuaƟ on as of the balance sheet date, based upon which, the company contributes 
the ascertained liabiliƟ es to the Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited Employees Gratuity Scheme Trust (the “Trust”) managed by the Life Insurance 
CorporaƟ on of India.

b) Provident Fund:
 Eligible employees receive benefi ts from a provident fund, which is a defi ned contribuƟ on plan. Aggregate contribuƟ ons along with 

interest thereon is paid at reƟ rement, death, incapacitaƟ on or terminaƟ on of employment. Both the employee and the company make 
monthly contribuƟ ons to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner equal to a specifi ed percentage of the covered employee’s salary. 

c) Employee State Insurance Fund: 
 Eligible employees (whose gross salary is less than Rs.15,000 per month) are  enƟ tled to receive benefi t under employee state 

insurance fund scheme. The employer makes contribuƟ on to the scheme at a predetermined rate (presently 4.75%) of employee’s 
gross salary. Tanla has no further obligaƟ ons under the plan beyond its monthly contribuƟ ons. These contribuƟ ons are made to the 
fund administered and managed by the Government of India. Tanla’s monthly contribuƟ ons are charged to income in the year it is 
incurred.

2.7 Research and development 
 Revenue expenditure incurred on research and development is expensed as incurred. Capital expenditure incurred on research and 

development is depreciated on straight-line method, pro-rata for the period of usage, in accordance with the rates prescribed under 
schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

2.8 Foreign Currency TransacƟ ons 
 The company translates all foreign currency transacƟ ons at Exchange Rates prevailing on the date of transacƟ ons. Exchange rate diff erences 

resulƟ ng from foreign exchange transacƟ ons seƩ led during the year are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
 Monetary current assets and monetary current liabiliƟ es that are denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate 

prevalent at the date of the balance sheet. The resulƟ ng diff erence is also recorded in the profi t and loss account.
2.9 Taxes on Income       
 Income taxes are computed using the tax eff ect accounƟ ng method, in accordance with the AccounƟ ng Standard (AS 22) “AccounƟ ng 

for Taxes on Income” which includes current taxes and deferred taxes. Deferred income taxes refl ect the impact of current year Ɵ ming 
diff erences between taxable income and accounƟ ng income for the year and the relevant Ɵ ming diff erence of earlier years. Deferred tax 
asset and liabiliƟ es are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset / liability is realized, based on 
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substanƟ vely enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred Tax assets are recognized and 
carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

2.10 Earning Per Share (EPS)       
 In determining earnings per share, the company considers the net profi t aŌ er tax expense. The number of shares used in compuƟ ng basic 

earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
2.11 Investments       
 Long term quoted investments are stated at cost & all other investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value.
2.12 Cash fl ow statement       
 Cash fl ows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profi t before tax is adjusted for the eff ects of transacƟ ons of a non-cash 

nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash fl ows from regular revenue generaƟ ng, invesƟ ng 
and fi nancing acƟ viƟ es of the company are segregated.
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Note Particulars
As at March 31, 2012 As at March 31, 2011

Number of shares Rupees Number of shares Rupees

3 SHARE CAPITAL     

 (a) Authorised     

       Equity shares of Re. 1 each 12 00 00 000 12 00 00 000 12 00 00 000 12 00 00 000 

 (b) Issued Subscribed and fully paid up:     

       Equity Shares of Re.1 each fully paid-up 10 14 79 593 10 14 79 593 10 14 79 593 10 14 79 593 

Note Particulars As at March 31, 2012 As at March 31, 2011

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Share Premium  429 58 89 975  429 58 89 975 
Investment subsidy  4 00 000  4 00 000 
General reserve 24 98 04 978  24 98 04 978 

Surplus / (Defi cit) in Statement of Profi t and Loss 
Opening balance  346 34 69 688  462 01 42 078 
Add: Profi t / (Loss) for the year  (157 42 85 251)  (114 48 38 982)

 188 91 84 437  347 53 03 097 
Less: Proposed dividend for the year  -    1 01 47 959 
Less: Tax on dividend  -    16 85 449 
Closing balance  188 91 84 437  346 34 69 688 

Net reserves & surplus from joint ventures  (77 92 730)  (81 92 730)
Currency translaƟ on reserve  38 39 92 102  (19 59 45 811)
Closing Balance of Reserves & Surplus  681 14 78 764  780 54 26 100

5 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY / (ASSET)
Deferred tax liability
    On account of depreciaƟ on  6 61 25 859  9 45 16 485 
Deferred tax asset
    On account of misc. expenses w/o  -    1 63 22 475 
    On un-absorbed losses  6 79 36 085  4 72 27 563 

 6 79 36 085  6 35 50 037 
Net deferred tax liability / (asset)  (18 10 226)  3 09 66 448 

6  OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
        Dues to Asset Supplier  2 00 66 614  -   

 2 00 66 614  -   

7  LONG-TERM PROVISIONS 
        TaxaƟ on  31 76 031  24 00 54 543 

 31 76 031  24 00 54 543 

8  TRADE PAYABLES 
 Other than acceptances  2 64 15 168  22 03 96 399 

 2 64 15 168  22 03 96 399 

9  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 Other LiabiliƟ es  6 82 47 716  20 57 54 322 

 6 82 47 716  20 57 54 322 

10  SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS 
 Proposed dividend  -    1 01 47 959 
 Provision for dividend tax  -    16 85 449 

 -    1 18 33 408 

 TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD      

 Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements    In Rs.

In Rs.

Consolidated
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Note Particulars As at March 31, 2012 As at March 31, 2011

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill
        On acquisiƟ on of Mufi  Thumb Entertainment Pvt Ltd  46 74 000  46 74 000 
        On acquisiƟ on of Tanla SoluƟ ons (UK) Ltd.  2 51 17 920  2 51 17 920 
        On acquisiƟ on of Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd  65 43 46 960  81 83 60 554 

 68 41 38 880  84 81 52 474 

       Less: Goodwill wriƩ en off  on Tanla Oy acquisiƟ on  33 11 97 693  22 31 81 212 

 35 29 41 187  62 49 71 262 

13 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Balances with government authoriƟ es unsecured, considered good

Service tax input credit  1 93 68 932  1 93 68 932 

 1 93 68 932  1 93 68 932 

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES

     (Unsecured and considered good)

     Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months  53 09 80 074  32 86 51 889 

     Other Trade receivables  95 06 84 631  131 87 21 237 

 148 16 64 705  164 73 73 126 

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

    Cash on hand  42 178  29 874 

    Balances with banks:

       (i)   in current accounts **  45 56 53 175  79 48 43 829 

       (ii)  in EEFC accounts 13 56 52 600 3 56 911

       (iii) in deposit accounts  12 22 43 908  8 64 37 347 
** includes balances in un-claimed dividend accounts Rs.12,57,039.00 
(2010-11 - Rs.10,16,646)  71 35 91 861  88 16 67 961 

16 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received  22 05 88 332  153 66 54 597 

Deposits with others  1 34 72 588  1 70 90 758 

Advance income tax & TDS  4 70 18 556  25 73 61 350 

 28 10 79 477  181 11 06 705 

17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Overseas  155 42 87 092  286 88 85 563 

DomesƟ c : India  22 68 27 654  9 63 41 462 

 178 11 14 746  296 52 27 025 

18 OTHER INCOME
       Interest on Deposits with Banks (Gross)  (Tax deducted at source  
       of Rs.374,466 (31.03.2011 - Rs.408,954)  1 51 22 833  63 81 182 

Interest received from others  -    31 54 174 

Misc Income  11 73 992  9 12 934 

 1 62 96 825  1 04 48 290 

19 COST OF SERVICES

Cost of Services  122 02 35 745  128 24 78 398 

 122 02 35 745  128 24 78 398 
20 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

       Salaries & Wages  14 91 75 064  12 19 97 178 

 14 91 75 064  12 19 97 178 

 TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD       
 Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements                                      In Rs.

Consolidated
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Note Particulars As at March 31, 2012 As at March 31, 2011

21 ADVERTISEMENT EXPENSES

AdverƟ sement expenses 8 19 86 579  58 66 16 784

 8 19 86 579 58 66 16 784 

22 PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS 

Provision for Bad debts 39 77 54 123 17 77 04 857

 39 77 54 123  17 77 04 857 

23 OTHER EXPENSES

Travelling expenses 1 97 56 870 1 69 44 954

CommunicaƟ on expenses 62 93 818 55 29 138

Repairs & maintenance expenses 46 74 747 58 41 434

Rent, rates & taxes 3 23 39 477 2 38 24 227

PrinƟ ng & staƟ onery 11 45 753 14 17 969

Offi  ce maintenance expenses 27 04 949 6 97 63 511

Power & fuel 35 65 713 38 58 346

General expenses 3 27 97 163 2 92 52 774

Professional charges 1 76 72 205 2 53 12 635

R&D Expenses 41 43 789 52 39 840

Auditors remuneraƟ on 15 73 466 20 63 166

Finance & bank charges 1 22 13 492 26 60 907

Loss on sale of vehicles / discarded assets 27 27 583 3 51 08 974

Exchange fl uctuaƟ on  2 18 98 567  14 14 50 237 

 16 35 07 592  36 82 68 112 

24
 
  
 

Con  ngent Liabili  es
S.No. Par  culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011

1 Outstanding guarantees given by the company Nil 16 50 000 
2 Claims against company, not acknowledged as debts      8 28 22 050 8 97 95 222 

3 Claims made by company, not acknowledged as debts  Nil  Nil 

4 Corporate Guarantee given to subsidiary companies  Nil  Nil 

Related Party Disclosures:
A) List of Related Par  es:

Segment Repor  ng        
 i) Business Segment:       
       
The Company is engaged in telecom infrastructure and related value added services business and its operaƟ ons consƟ tute a single 
segment in the context of AccounƟ ng Standard (AS17) “Segment ReporƟ ng”

Name of the Related Party Country Rela  onship with the En  ty

Tanla SoluƟ ons (UK) Limited UK Wholly-owned subsidiary

Tanla Mobile South Africa Pty Limited South Africa Wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd

Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Limited Singapore Wholly-owned subsidiary

Tanla Mobile Ireland Private Limited Ireland Wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd

Tanla Mobile Middle East FZ LLC UAE Wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Asia Pacifi c Pte Ltd

Tanla Oy Finland Wholly-owned subsidiary of Tanla Mobile Finland Oy

Tanla Mobile Private Limited India Wholly-owned subsidiary

TZ Mobile Private Limited India Joint Venture with ZED Worldwide Holdings S.L. Spain

25

26

 TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD      
 Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements                     In Rs.

Consolidated



48
Annual Report 2011 - 12

TA
N

LA
 S

O
LU

TI
O

N
S 

LI
M

IT
ED

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
ot

es
 fo

rm
in

g 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 fi 
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

B)
 L

is
t o

f T
ra

ns
ac
Ɵ o

ns
 w

ith
 R

el
at

ed
 P

ar
Ɵ e

s:
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
 R

s.

Pa
rƟ

 c
ul

ar
s

Ta
nl

a 
So

lu
Ɵ o

ns
 

(U
K)

 L
im

ite
d 

- U
K

Ta
nl

a 
M

ob
ile

 S
ou

th
 

A
fr

ic
a 

Pt
y 

 L
im

ite
d 

- 
So

ut
h 

A
fr

ic
a

Ta
nl

a 
M

ob
ile

 A
si

a 
Pa

ci
fi c

 P
te

 L
td

 - 
Si

ng
ap

or
e

Ta
nl

a 
M

ob
ile

 
Ir

el
an

d 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Lt

d 
- I

re
la

nd

Ta
nl

a 
M

ob
ile

 M
id

dl
e 

Ea
st

 F
Z 

LL
C 

- D
ub

ai
Ta

nl
a 

O
y 

Fi
nl

an
d

Ta
nl

a 
M

ob
ile

 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Li

m
ite

d
TZ

 M
ob

ile
 P

vt
 L

td

a
Re

la
Ɵ o

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
pa

rƟ
 e

s

W
ho

lly
-

ow
ne

d 
su

bs
id

ia
ry

W
ho

lly
-o

w
ne

d 
su

bs
id

ia
ry

 o
f T

an
la

 
So

lu
Ɵ o

ns
 (U

K)
 L

td

W
ho

lly
-o

w
ne

d 
su

bs
id

ia
ry

W
ho

lly
-o

w
ne

d 
su

bs
id

ia
ry

 o
f 

Ta
nl

a 
M

ob
ile

 
As

ia
 P

ac
ifi 

c 
Pt

e.
 L

td

W
ho

lly
-o

w
ne

d 
su

bs
id

ia
ry

 o
f T

an
la

 
M

ob
ile

 A
si

a 
Pa

ci
fi c

 
Pt

e.
 L

td

W
ho

lly
-

ow
ne

d 
su

bs
id

ia
ry

 o
f 

Ta
nl

a 
M

ob
ile

 
Fi

nl
an

d 
O

y

W
ho

lly
-o

w
ne

d 
su

bs
id

ia
ry

Jo
in

t V
en

tu
re

 w
ith

 
ZE

D
 W

O
RL

D
W

ID
E 

H
O

LD
IN

G
S,

 S
.L

., 
Sp

ai
n 

b
N

at
ur

e 
of

 tr
an

sa
cƟ

 o
ns

Sa
le

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
es

Ad
va

nc
e 

fo
r s

al
es

Re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t o
f 

ex
pe

ns
es

Ad
va

nc
e 

fo
r 

sa
le

s

Sa
le

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
&

 
Re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t o

f 
ex

pe
ns

es

Sa
le

s 
of

 
Pr

od
uc

ts
, 

Se
rv

ic
es

Re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t 
of

 e
xp

en
se

s

Sa
le

s 
of

 P
ro

du
ct

s,
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 &
 

Re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t o
f 

ex
pe

ns
es

c
Va

lu
e 

of
 tr

an
sa

cƟ
 o

ns
 8

 5
8 

66
 9

02
 

 1
9 

77
 9

72
 

 1
 5

8 
98

0 
 -   

 -   
 5

7 
81

 2
44

 
 (2

 9
7 

78
 5

07
)

(6
 9

4 
54

3)
   

d
Am

ou
nt

 o
f o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 6

 5
5 

13
 8

10
 

 2
1 

49
 4

53
 

 8
 8

8 
50

1 
 (2

9 
55

 1
40

)
 7

2 
85

 3
79

 
 6

 9
4 

29
 4

69
 

 2
 8

7 
68

 0
38

 
13

 2
6 

05
8 

e
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r d

ou
bƞ

 u
l 

de
bt

s
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

f
Am

ou
nt

 w
riƩ

 e
n 

off
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

Consolidated



Annual Report 2011 - 12
49

Name
Salary and 
allowances

ContribuƟ ons to 
provident and 

other funds

Perquisites 
and 

incenƟ ves

Total 
remuneraƟ on

Mr.D. Uday Kumar Reddy -  Chairman & Managing Director 45 63 253 2 30 080 14 400 48 07 733

Mr.K. SaƟ sh, Chief Technical Offi  cer 40 56 975 2 04 553 14 400 42 75 928

Mr.Anoop Roy Kundal,  Director – OperaƟ ons 21 42 000 1 08 000 14 400 22 64 400

Mr.Amit Gupta, Director – Finance 11 04 320 85 680 14 400 12 04 400

Mr.Navnit Chachan, Chief OperaƟ ng Offi  cer 6 00 000 28 800 14 400 6 43 200

Total  1 24 66 548           6 57 113         72 000 1 31 95 661 

RemuneraƟ on to non-execuƟ ve directors                    In Rs.

Name Siƫ  ng Fees Reimbursement of Expenses Total

Mr.Abhishek Khaitan - Director  -    -    -   

Dr. Sudhanshu Shekhar Jamuar - Director  30 000  -    30 000 

Padmabhushan Ram Narain Agarwal - Director  50 000  -    50 000 

Mr. Surjeet Kumar Palhan - Director  10 000  -    10 000 

Total  90 000  -    90 000 

Consolidated remuneraƟ on                                                                                                                                                         In Rs.

Name Year ended March 31, 2012 Year ended March 31, 2011

Whole-Ɵ me directors

    Salary  1 24 66 548  97 36 898 

    ContribuƟ ons to provident and other funds  6 57 113  5 46 650 

    Perquisites and incenƟ ves  72 000  72 000 

   Total  1 31 95 661  1 03 55 548 

Non-whole-Ɵ me directors

   Siƫ  ng fees  90 000  1 10 000 

   Reimbursement of expenses  -    -   

   Total  90 000  1 10 000 

Grand Total  1 32 85 661  1 04 65 548 

TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED, HYDERABAD         
Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

27  List of TransacƟ ons with Key Management Personnel                      In Rs.

Consolidated
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED         
Notes forming part of the fi nancial statements

Foreign Exchange earned and outgo                                                                                                                                                     In Rs.

a. Imports (valued on the cost, insurance and freight basis)

ParƟ culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011

Import of capital goods     17 25 335  6 38 78 362 

b. AcƟ vity in foreign currency 

ParƟ culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011

Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

   Income from soŌ ware products and off shore development services  14 15 01 021  19 07 09 339 

   Dividends received  -    -   

   Interest received  -    -   

Expenditure in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

    Cost of services  11 83 02 811  2 25 03 713 

    Foreign Travel Expenses  22 33 634  15 58 238 

    Professional Charges  3 20 202  14 93 105 

Net earnings in foreign exchange  1 89 19 039  10 12 75 921 

28

Earnings Per Share                                                                                                                                                                                    In Rs.

ParƟ culars For the Year 2011-2012 For the Year 2010-2011

Net profi t aŌ er tax  (157 42 85 251)  (114 48 38 982)

Weighted average number of equity shares of Re.1 each  10 14 79 593  10 14 79 593 

Nominal value of shares Re.1 Re.1

Earnings per share (basic/diluted) Rs. (15.51) (11.28)

29

QuanƟ taƟ ve details

The Company is engaged in the business of development & maintenance of Computer SoŌ ware, off shore 
development and other related services. The producƟ on and sale of such soŌ ware services cannot be expressed 
in any generic unit and hence it is not possible to give such quanƟ taƟ ve details of sales and certain informaƟ on as 
required under paragraph 3,4C and 4D of Part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. The details of ConservaƟ on 
of Energy, Technology absorpƟ on are given in Directors Report. R&D expenditure is not separately accounted for.

30

In terms of our report aƩ ached    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,     
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

 Sd/-
C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

 Sd/-
Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

 Sd/-
SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
Chief Technical Offi  cer

 Sd/-
Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

 Sd/-
Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  

Consolidated
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Readers of this annual report are hereby cau  oned that the statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis might be forward-
looking in nature hence the investors are requested to exercise their own judgment in assessing the associated risks. 

RESULT OF OPERATIONS In Rs.

ParƟ culars March 2012 % of Total Revenue March 2011 % of Total Revenue % Change 

Revenues 179 74 11 572  297 56 75 314  (39.60%)

Cost of Sales 125 52 54 985 69.8% 130 98 81 631 44.0% (4.17%)

Gross Margin % 30.16%  55.98%   

Selling & MarkeƟ ng Expenses 10 93 33 792 6.1% 28 76 62 399 9.7% (61.99%)

General AdministraƟ on Expenses 64 80 70 325 36.1% 93 95 21 297 31.6% (31.02%)

OperaƟ ng Profi t (EBITDA) (21 52 47 530) (12.0%) 43 86 09 987 14.7% (149.07%)

EBITDA (%) (11.98%)  14.74%  (181.25%)

DepreciaƟ on & AmorƟ zaƟ on 139 43 60 016 77.6% 165 53 28 288 55.6% (15.77%)

Earnings before Tax (160 96 07 546) (89.6%) (121 67 18 301) (40.9%) (32.29%)

Provision for Tax (3 53 22 295) (2.0%) (7 18 79 319) (2.4%) (50.86%)

Earnings aŌ er Tax (157 42 85 251) (87.6%) (114 48 38 982) (38.5%) (37.51%)

EPS (Rs.) (15.51)  (11.28)  (37.51%)

Revenue
Tanla derives its domesƟ c revenue from providing value added services to telecom operators, handset manufacturers, mobile payments and 
managed services to media customers. During the year company revenues from mobile payments and managed services increased substanƟ ally 
due to robust plaƞ orm and innovaƟ ve product off erings to clients. Overseas revenue comprises of revenue from mobile payments services 
provided to enterprises and content providers using various plaƞ orms.

During the year we have expanded our global client base by partnering with some of the leading handset manufacturers, in addiƟ on to 
conƟ nuing with the exisƟ ng partnerships.

The segmentaƟ on of revenue by geography:                                                       In Rs.

ParƟ culars March 2012 % of Revenue March 2011 % of Revenue % Change 

India 22 68 27 654 12.74% 9 63 41 462 3.25% 135.44%

Outside India 155 42 87 092 87.26% 286 88 85 563 96.75% (45.82%)

Total Revenue 178 11 14 747  296 52 27 025  (39.93%)

The revenue for the FY 2011-12 was INR 17811.15 Lakhs as against INR 29652.27 Lakhs for FY 2010-11, recording a drop of 39.93%. Revenue 
from domesƟ c sales for the year FY 2011-12 was INR 2268.27 Lakhs as against INR 963.41 Lakhs for FY 2010-11 registering a growth of 135.44%. 
Revenue from overseas sales for the year FY 2011-12 was INR 15542.87 Lakhs as against INR 28688.86 Lakhs for FY 2010-11 registering a drop 
of 45.82%.
Increase in revenue in India is aƩ ributed to: 
 • Increase in user base for product off erings and launch of new products in Telco verƟ cal
 • Increase in billing to enterprise and managed services customers as a result of increased usage and pricing
Decrease in overseas revenue is aƩ ributed to:
 • A selecƟ ve shiŌ  from legacy business due to changes in regulatory framework  
 • ConƟ nued impact of drop in revenue from key customer Nokia 

Cost of Sales                                                           In Rs.

 ParƟ culars March 2012 % of Revenue March 2011 % of Revenue % Change 

Cost of services 122 02 35 745 68.51% 128 24 78 398 43.25% 25.26%

Direct manpower costs 2 51 55 808 1.41% 1 38 27 745 0.47% 0.95%

Direct administraƟ ve costs  98 63 432 0.55% 1 35 75 489 0.46% 0.10%

Total Cost of Sales 125 52 54 985 70.48% 130 98 81 631 44.17% 26.30%

Increase in business development expenses and revenue share payouts to developers as a result of change in product-mix and increase in direct manpower 
costs in terms of salaries and incenƟ ves paid to developer teams across all geographies has resulted in increase in expenditure towards cost of sales. 
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Selling & MarkeƟ ng Expenses                     In Rs.

ParƟ culars March 2012 % of Revenue March 2011 % of Revenue % Change 

Sales team salaries & benefi ts 1 67 95 810 0.94% 2 89 12 208 0.98% (0.03%)

Business promoƟ on and markeƟ ng 8 19 86 579 4.60% 20 36 77 005 6.87% (2.27%)

Other selling & markeƟ ng expenses 1 05 51 403 0.59% 5 50 73 186 1.86% (1.26%)

Total selling & markeƟ ng expenses 10 93 33 792 6.14% 28 76 62 399 9.70% (3.56%)

Decrease in business promoƟ on and markeƟ ng expense is on account of change in clientele-mix as the promoƟ on expenditure is taken up by 
new clients and downsizing of sales teams in various geographies. 

General & administraƟ ve expenses                     In Rs.

 ParƟ culars March 2012 % of Revenue March 2011 % of Revenue % Change 

Staff  salaries & benefi ts 10 72 23 446 6.02% 7 92 57 226 2.67% 3.35%

Provision for Bad debts 39 77 54 123 22.33% 17 77 04 857 5.99% 16.34%

Exchange fl uctuaƟ on 2 18 98 567 1.23% 14 14 50 237 4.77% (3.54%)

AdverƟ sement & MarkeƟ ng Expenses  80 88 625 0.45% 38 29 39 779 12.91% (12.46%)

Other administraƟ ve expenses 11 31 05 564 6.35% 15 81 69 199 5.33% 1.02%

Total General & administraƟ ve expenses 64 80 70 325 36.39% 93 95 21 297 31.68% 4.70%

Staff  Salaries & Benefi ts
Annual increments and staff  benefi t expenses have resulted in an increase in administraƟ ve staff  salaries. 

Provision for bad debts
Pursuant to the execuƟ ve management decision to reassess the realisibility of overdue receivables, an amount of INR 3977.54 lakhs has 
been provided towards bad and doubƞ ul debts in various geographies on account of reconciliaƟ on issues and probability of non-realisaƟ on 
from telcos / aggregators / other clients. Management focuses on following-up with non-moving debtors to enable realizaƟ on of dues to the 
maximum extent possible

Exchange fl uctuaƟ ons
Foreign exchange loss of INR 219.99 lakhs is on account of invoice realizaƟ on and restatement of debtors.

Earnings before other income, depreciaƟ on & amorƟ zaƟ on and taxes (EBITDA)
EBITDA for FY 2011-12 stood at (INR 2152.48) lakhs as compared to INR 4386.10 lakhs in FY 2010-11 primarily on account of provision for 
doubƞ ul debts of INR 3977.54 lakhs and decline in overseas business operaƟ ons.

DepreciaƟ on & amorƟ zaƟ on
Summary of depreciaƟ on & amorƟ zaƟ on is as follows:       In Rs.

 ParƟ culars 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11

DepreciaƟ on 106 31 62 323 143 21 47 075

AmorƟ zaƟ on of goodwill 33 11 97 693 22 31 81 212

TOTAL 139 43 60 016 165 53 28 288

The decrease in DepreciaƟ on in FY 2011-12 as compared to FY 2010-11 of INR 3689.85 lakhs is a result of write-off  of fully depreciated fi xed 
assets on the basis of useful life of the assets in various geographies. Management has decided to amorƟ se 50% of balance of goodwill as on 
31st March 2011 pertaining to acquisiƟ on of Tanla Oy, as compared to 25% during FY 2010-11.

Provision for taxaƟ on
Deferred Tax for FY 2011-12 is INR (355.79) Lakhs as against INR (733.58) lakhs in FY 2010-11 on account of Ɵ ming diff erence on depreciaƟ on.
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FINACIAL CONDITION

Share capital
The authorized share capital of Tanla is Rs 12 00 00 000, comprising of 12 00 00 000 equity shares of Re. 1/-each. As at March 31, 2012, the 
issued and paid up share capital of Tanla is Rs. 10 17 49 593 comprising of 10 17 49 593 equity shares of Re.1/- each. The company has not 
issued any shares during FY 2011-12.

Reserves & Surplus
A Summary of Reserves & Surplus is given below     In Rs.

ParƟ culars 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11

Share Premium 429 58 89 975 429 58 89 975

Investment subsidy  4 00 000  4 00 000

General reserve 24 98 04 978 24 98 04 978

Balance in profi t and loss account 188 91 84 437 346 34 69 688

Currency translaƟ on reserve & surplus from joint ventures 37 61 99 373 (20 41 38 540)

TOTAL 681 14 78 764 780 54 26 102

Currency translaƟ on reserve has increased on account of favourable foreign exchange fl uctuaƟ ons on assets in various geographies. 
Currency fl uctuaƟ on on account of revenue items is included under exchange fl uctuaƟ on and charged to profi t and loss account.

The balance retained in profi t & loss account as of 31st March’2012 is INR 18 891.84 Lakhs post tax.

The total net worth of the company as on 31st March’2012 is INR 65 600.17 Lakhs with the book value of each share being INR 64.64 as against 
the corresponding numbers for FY 2010-11 of INR 72 819.34 Lakhs and INR 71.76 respecƟ vely. The diff erence in net worth is on account of 
loss in FY 2011-12.

Goodwill on consolidaƟ on
Goodwill on acquisiƟ on of Tanla Oy is wriƩ en off  @ 50% of the balance as on 31st March 2011 as against 25% wriƩ en off  during FY 
2010-11. The goodwill as on 31st March 2012 is INR 3529.41 Lakhs.

Sundry debtors
The sundry debtors (net of provision for doubƞ ul debts) amount to INR 14 816.65 Lakhs as on 31st March 2012 as compared to INR 16473.73 
Lakhs as on 31st March 2011. RealisaƟ on of debtors has slowed down primarily in the legacy business due to general economic condiƟ ons. 
Management is however monitoring the debtors closely for speeding up the realizaƟ on process.

Summary of debtors is given below:          In Rs.

 ParƟ culars 31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11

More than 6 months 53  09 80 074 32  86 51 889

Less than 6 months 95  06 84 631 131  87 21 237

Cash & Bank balances
The cash and bank balance as on 31st March 2012 was INR 7 135.92 lakhs as against a balance of INR 8 816.67 lakhs as on 31st March 2011. 

The decrease of bank balance is on account of payments for asset acquisiƟ on and payment to creditors and taxaƟ on payments.

Short Term Loans and Advances
The loans and advances outstanding as on 31st March 2012 is INR 3 004.48 lakhs as compared to INR 18 304.76 Lakhs as on 31st March 2011.

The loans and advances include advances paid to content providers, aggregator clients, rent deposits for premises. It also includes direct and 
indirect taxes such as TDS, advance income tax, VAT, sales tax and service tax.

Non-Current and Current LiabiliƟ es and Provisions
Non-Current and Current LiabiliƟ es and Provisions outstanding as on 31st March 2012 is INR 1 179.06  Lakhs as compared to INR 6 780.39 lakhs 
as on 31st March 2011. Decrease of INR 5 601.33 Lakhs is primarily on account of set-off  of tax provisions against advance tax and payment of 
trade payables. 
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Report on Risk Management 

The global economy has seen unprecedented changes in the last decade. While there have been uncertainƟ es in global economy including 
United States and Europe during the laƩ er part of the past decade, the emerging economies have shown resilience in retaining moderate to 
high growth levels. The Indian economy conƟ nues to show reasonably good overall growth despite the challenges faced.

The mobile VAS segment of the telecom industry in various geographies is governed by stringent and dynamic regulatory procedures in 
addiƟ on to delayed payment realizaƟ ons from the telecom operators. To overcome the impact of these factors on the company’s business, 
the company has strategically shiŌ ed its focus from its tradiƟ onal business to rendering products and soluƟ ons for handset manufacturers 
with global presence. 

The company conƟ nues to place emphasis on developing and providing cost-eff ecƟ ve products and soluƟ ons for global handset manufacturers 
ahead of the curve. 

The company operates in 4 major business verƟ cals namely:- 
Products, Aggregator, Mobile Consultancy and Mobile Payments

Management assesses the risks involved in each project, which is idenƟ fi ed by the respecƟ ve Project Managers at review meeƟ ngs held 
periodically. The Board of Directors is provided an analysis of new projects and the aƩ endant risks at periodic meeƟ ngs. The Board is 
responsible for addressing the risk levels of projects and provides guidance on the risk management policies to be followed. All projects are 
conƟ nuously monitored to enable miƟ gaƟ on of inherent risks to the extent possible.

The company operates in mobile value-added services sector of the telecom industry, which is a highly dynamic environment with rapid 
changes in technology and customer-preferences. While management spares no eff ort in trying to miƟ gate risk to the maximum extent 
possible, the environment involves risks which are beyond its control. Some of the risks which are relevant to the company and its operaƟ ons 
are explained below. 

Financial Risks 
Liquidity risk and foreign exchange fl uctuaƟ on risks are the major fi nancial risks faced by the Company. 

Liquidity 
Current assets comprise of Cash and Cash equivalents, Trade receivables, Loans and advances given.

Current assets are those that are available to meet immediate business needs and can be realized within the working capital cycle. Suffi  cient 
liquid assets are held to meet the working capital needs of company and also to address new business opportuniƟ es. While Cash and Cash 
equivalents are readily available for business needs, trade receivables are realised based on the credit period extended to clients. Delays in 
recovery of trade receivables have an impact on the liquidity of the Company and so these receivables need to be monitored closely for 
realisaƟ on. 
The following is the posiƟ on of liquid assets of the Company: 

RaƟ o       2012  2011
Cash and cash equivalents as % of assets   10.15%  10.23%
Cash and cash equivalents as % of revenue   39.70%  29.63%

The Company seƩ les dues in respect of trade and other payables within sƟ pulated Ɵ me frames. The company maintains adequate cash 
balances to meet working capital requirements; excess cash is converted into interest bearing term deposits with Banks that provide a good 
rate of interest. The Company is presently realizing a decent periodical interest reported under head “Other Income” in the relevant secƟ on.

Foreign currency fl uctuaƟ ons 
The company by virtue of its global presence is exposed to signifi cant currency fl uctuaƟ ons and unexpected changes in the regulatory 
framework in mulƟ ple geographies. 

The Company derives a signifi cant porƟ on of its revenues in Foreign Currencies. In India, the Company retains foreign currency in EEFC 
accounts with the Bank to the extent permissible under FEMA RegulaƟ ons to negate the impact of unfavorable exchange fl uctuaƟ on on 
overseas payments. The principal foreign currencies dealt with by the Company include Great Britain Pound, US Dollar and Euro. 

Business Porƞ olio Risks 
A business is subject to the risks involved with respect to the services off ered by it, the geographies in which it operates and clients on which 
it is highly dependent. 

Mobile VAS and telecom infrastructure services, the business segment in which the company operates, is subject to the eff ect of a number of 
factors, including subscriber preferences in various geographies, regulatory framework changes by telecom authoriƟ es in various geographies, 
new products/services/applicaƟ ons launched by the company or its compeƟ tors, pricing dynamics of compeƟ tors, ability of the company to 
capture market share, ability of the company to acquire and retain talent to meet the demands of business and general economic condiƟ ons.
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2.1 Business verƟ cal diversifi caƟ on
Business verƟ cals are the services off ered to clients across the industry. The Company operates in four major business verƟ cals as defi ned 
above.

While tradiƟ onal business has comprised primarily of Aggregator business, the company has strategically diversifi ed into products and 
mobile payments verƟ cals to ensure a robust product mix. 

During the previous year, the Company’s revenues were derived from products, aggregator and mobile payments verƟ cals. Company has 
endeavored to miƟ gate its risks by expanding its presence in business verƟ cals diff erent from its legacy business targeƟ ng handset 
manufacturers.

During the year, the Company had its revenues distributed in the raƟ o of 54:31:15 among the aggregator, products and mobile payments 
verƟ cals respecƟ vely. 

2.2 Client porƞ olio 
A diverse client porƞ olio reduces the dependence on a few large clients and thus reduces the risk due to lower business from them on 
account of cyclical changes in business. To miƟ gate the risk of business concentraƟ on, the company is focusing on partnering with leading 
handset manufacturers. While the company is already Ɵ ed up with Nokia for license manager product, it has been successful in closing a deal 
with RIM for its Games Club soluƟ on apart from managing other services and is likely to fi nalize deals with two global handset manufacturers.

2.3 Geographical distribuƟ on 
DistribuƟ on of revenues over diverse geographies reduces the risk on account of unfavorable economic condiƟ ons, trade policies and 
poliƟ cal situaƟ on in certain geographies. 
The company’s successful tracƟ on in the domesƟ c Indian market since the previous year conƟ nues to be encouraging which has led to a 
reducƟ on in the company’s erstwhile Europe-centric business operaƟ ons. Partnering with RIM (BlackBerry), has given the Company a much-
needed entry into the developing LaƟ n American and North America markets. 

Technological obsolescence 
The company being in a technology-intensive business, it is imperaƟ ve for the company to keep itself upgraded with the latest technology 
soluƟ ons. Technologies adopted by handset manufacturers diff er thereby warranƟ ng the company to adopt the technology off ered by the 
handset manufacturer it partners with. The success of the company’s products and soluƟ ons hinges on the success of the technology 
adopted by its client.  

Earlier technologies become redundant and hence result in write off  of certain assets. The following table gives depreciaƟ on expense as a 
proporƟ on of revenues for the last two years. 

RaƟ o     FY 2012  FY2011
DepreciaƟ on/Average Gross Block  18.09%  28.05%

Legal and Statutory Risks 
Contractual LiabiliƟ es 
Statutory Compliance 

4.1 Contractual liabiliƟ es 
Partnering with global handset manufacturers entails long-drawn Ɵ melines for closure of commercial terms and legal agreements thereby 
delaying product deployment and revenue realizaƟ on.  The management has clearly charted out a review and documentaƟ on process for 
contracts. This process focuses on evaluaƟ ng the legal risks involved in a contract, on ascertaining the legal responsibiliƟ es of  the Company 
under the applicable law of the contract, on restricƟ ng its liabiliƟ es under the contract and covering risks. The management reviews this on 
a conƟ nuous basis and takes correcƟ ve acƟ on, as appropriate. As a maƩ er of policy the company does not enter into contracts, which have 
open-ended legal obligaƟ ons. To date, the company has no material liƟ gaƟ on in relaƟ on to contractual obligaƟ ons pending against it in any 
court in India or abroad. 

4.2 Statutory compliance 
Due to its global presence, the company is subject to various tax and compliance regulaƟ ons. The Company has a reliable internal control 
system that ensures and monitors compliance with regional regulaƟ ons in all jurisdicƟ ons where the Company operates. Legal compliance 
issues are an important factor in assessing all new business proposals.  

CompeƟ Ɵ on Risks 
The Company is in existence for 13 years now and has always strived to think ahead of its compeƟ tors and has succeeded in launching new 
products and soluƟ ons for its clients ahead of the curve and thus given the compeƟ tors a run for their share in the VAS market. CompeƟ Ɵ on 
and Technology risks are determined by the success of the technology adopted by the Company’s client and the success of the Client’s 
product. New compeƟ tors may enter the markets the Company operates in or current compeƟ tors could decide to focus more on these 
markets, and thereby intensify the highly compeƟ Ɵ ve condiƟ ons that already exist. Such developments would enable these new and exisƟ ng 
compeƟ tors to off er similar services at reduced prices. This could harm the Company’s business and results of operaƟ ons. The management 
keeps track of the market movements and acts accordingly to miƟ gate this risk. The services market is highly compeƟ Ɵ ve and our compeƟ tors 
may have advantages that may allow them to compete more eff ecƟ vely than we do to secure client contracts and aƩ ract skilled telecom 
professionals. 
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Macro Economic Risks: 
Changes in the global economic environment are bound to have an impact on the progress of every company’s growth. The Company has 
successfully managed its business despite global economic slowdown and stringent regulatory environment by re-defi ning its focus to cost 
eff ecƟ ve telecom products and soluƟ ons from its legacy business. 

Internal Control Systems: 
The Company believes in a strong internal control framework for eff ecƟ ve statutory compliance and safeguard assets of the Company. The 
Company has adequate internal control systems in place commensurate with its nature of operaƟ ons which provide reliable fi nancial and 
operaƟ onal informaƟ on complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, execuƟ ng transacƟ ons with proper 
authorizaƟ ons and ensuring compliance of corporate policies.

The internal auditor conducts a periodic audit on the statutory compliances and other factors impacƟ ng the business of the Company and 
presents an exhausƟ ve report to the Audit CommiƩ ee for its review. The internal audit report describes non-compliance and other 
important issues having a bearing on the operaƟ ons of the Company and suggests correcƟ ve acƟ on to ensure non-recurrence of the issues 
idenƟ fi ed.

Human Resources Development and industrial RelaƟ ons:
The Company has believed in idenƟ fying and encouraging the right talent required for the niche mobile based soŌ ware development.  The 
Human Resources Department conducts consultaƟ on, dialogue, deliberaƟ ons, negoƟ aƟ ons with employees to ensure employee job 
saƟ sfacƟ on, as the Company believes in retaining talent. Employees are adequately awarded for their performance and loyalty. Employees 
who are capable of mulƟ  tasking and express a desire to expand their horizon of deliverables are provided with required on job training 
pursuant to which they are provided with ample opportunity to deliver.

The Company has been maintaining cordial relaƟ ons with all its employees since incepƟ on. The Company strives to provide congenial 
atmosphere to the employees and sets high standards of effi  ciency and performance.
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 InformaƟ on Pursuant to the Provisions of Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956  
Statement on Balance Sheet Abstract and General Business Profi le of the Company:

RegistraƟ on Details
• RegistraƟ on No.     : L72200AP1995PLC021262
• State Code     : 01
• Balance Sheet Date    : 31.03.2012

Capital Raised during the year
• Public Issue     : Nil
• Rights Issue     : Nil
• Bonus Issue     : Nil

Private Placement     : Nil

Posi  on of Mobiliza  on and Deployment of Funds 
• Total LiabiliƟ es     : Rs.645 02 94 181 
• Total Assets     : Rs.645 02 94 181

SOURCES OF FUNDS:     :
• Paid-up Capital     : Rs.10 14 79 593
• Reserves & Surplus    : Rs.616 42 24 834
• Deferred Tax Liability    : Nil

Applica  on Of Funds:
• Net Fixed Assets    : Rs.71 04 37 213
• Investments     : Rs.465 88 20 591
• Net Current Assets    : Rs.81 76 41 632
• Misc.Expenditure    : Nil

Performance of Company
• Turnover/Income    : Rs.37 32 47 311
• Total Expenditure    : Rs.51 42 49 015
• Profi t Before Tax     : Rs.(14 10 01 704)
• Profi t AŌ er Tax     : Rs.(10 58 73 995)
• Earning per Share (face value Re.1 each) in Rs. : (1.04)
• Dividend Rate %    : Nil

Generic Names of three principal products/services of Company
• (As per monetary terms)
• Item Code No. (IIC Code)   : 85249009.10
• Product DescripƟ on                                             :             SoŌ ware Development and related services      

In terms of our report aƩ ached 
  
For RAMASAMY KOTESWARA RAO & CO.,     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.010396S

C.V. Koteswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.28353

Uday Kumar Reddy Dasari
Chairman & Managing Director

SaƟ sh Kathiriseƫ  
Chief Technical Offi  cer

Srinivas Kamoji Gunupudi
Chief Financial Offi  cer

Place: Hyderabad.
Date :  August 14, 2012 

Seshanuradha Chava
AGM – Legal & Secretarial  
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NOTICE OF 16TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE  is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual General MeeƟ ng of the members of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited 
will be held on Friday, 28 September, 2012 at 10.30 am at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company situated 
at Tanla Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081, to transact the following 
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2012 and Profi t & Loss Account 

for the year ended March 31, 2012 together with the Report of Auditors’ and Directors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Director, who reƟ res by rotaƟ on and being eligible, 
off ers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Sudhanshu Sekhar Jamuar, Director, who reƟ res by rotaƟ on and being 
eligible, off ers himself for re-appointment. 

4. To appoint a Director in place of Padma Bhushan Ram Narain Agarwal, Director, who reƟ res by rotaƟ on 
and being eligible, off ers himself for re-appointment. 

5. To re- appoint M/s Ramasamy Koteswara Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad, as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company.

 “RESOLVED THAT M/s Ramasamy Koteswara Rao & Co., (Firm Regd. No: 010396S) Chartered Accountants, 
Hyderabad,be and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors to hold the offi  ce from the conclusion of 
this Annual General MeeƟ ng Ɵ ll the  conclusion of the next Annual General MeeƟ ng at such remuneraƟ on 
as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

          By the order of the Board of Directors
          For Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited
   
           Sd/-
                       Seshanuradha Chava 
                   AGM – Legal & Secretarial

Place: Hyderabad
Date:   August 14, 2012

Registered Offi  ce:
Tanla Technology Centre, 
Hi-tech City Road, 
Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081.
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NOTES:

1.A member enƟ tled to aƩ end and vote at the meeƟ ng is enƟ tled to appoint a proxy to aƩ end and vote thereat 
instead  of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the company.

2.The instrument appoinƟ ng proxy in order to be eff ecƟ ve must be deposited at the registered of the company 
not less  than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeƟ ng.

3.Corporate members intending to send or nominate their authorized representaƟ ves to aƩ end and vote at the 
meeƟ ng are requested to send a cerƟ fi ed copy of the Board resoluƟ on authorizing their representaƟ ves to 
aƩ end  and vote on their behalf at the meeƟ ng.

4.The register of members and share transfer books shall remain closed from 24th September, 2012 to 28th 
September, 2012 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General MeeƟ ng.

5.Members desirous of asking any quesƟ ons at the Annual General MeeƟ ng are requested to send their 
quesƟ ons so as  to reach the registered offi  ce at least 7 days before the meeƟ ng so that the same can be 
suitably replied to.

6.All documents referred to in the NoƟ ce and annexure thereto along with other mandatory registers / 
documents are open for inspecƟ on at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company on all working days ( except 
Saturdays and Sundays ) between 11.00 am to 1.00 pm prior to the date of Annual General MeeƟ ng.

7.The Ministry of Corporate Aff airs has taken a corporate “Green iniƟ aƟ ve in the corporate governance” 
by allowing paperless compliance by companies.  As per the MCA Circular, Service of documents through 
eletronic mode i.e., e-mail by the company will be a valid compliance of SecƟ on 53 of the Companies Act, 
1956.  A recent amendment to the LisƟ ng Agreement with the Stock Exchange permits companies to send 
soŌ  copies of the Annual Report to all those shareholders who have registered their e-mail id’s for the said 
purpose.  As such the members who have not yet registered their e-mail id’s are requested to furnish/register 
their e-mail id’s at einward.ris@karvy.com to enable the Company to send all noƟ ces, periodical statements 
etc., of the company through electronic mode.

         By the order of the Board of Directors
                          For Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited
                      
            Sd/-
                                 Seshanuradha Chava 
                            AGM – Legal & Secretarial
Place: Hyderabad
Date:   August 14, 2012

Registered Offi  ce:
Tanla Technology Centre, 
Hi-tech City Road, 
Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081.
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AddiƟ onal InformaƟ on on Directors recommended for re-appointment:

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, LLB (Hons) is pracƟ cing as Solicitor in England and Wales. Currently he is a partner in 
M/s Bower CoƩ on Khaitan, Solicitors, a law fi rm based in London. He specializes in Commercial Law, Company 
Law, liƟ gaƟ on maƩ ers, etc., 

Before joining on the Board of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited, he was a Director of Techserv Ltd , which is now a 
subsidiary of Tanla SoluƟ ons UK Ltd, a Wholly owned subsidiary of Tanla SoluƟ ons Limited.

None of the Directors other than Mr. Abhishek Khaitan is interested in this resoluƟ on.
None of the Directors are related inter-se.

Dr. Sudhanshu Sekhar Jamuar
Dr. Sudhanshu Sekhar Jamuar, an engineering graduate from Bihar InsƟ tute of Technology followed by 
M.Tech and Ph.D from Indian InsƟ tute of Technology, Kharagpur. He acquired DIM and MBA from the Faculty 
of Management Studies, Delhi University and is trained in Industrial Management in Netherlands. He is 
recipient of Meghnad Saha Memorial Award from IETE and a senior member of IEEE and Fellow member of 
IETE(India).
Currently Dr. Sudhanshu Sekhar Jamuar is a Professor in University of Malaya, Malaysia. 

None of the Directors other than Dr. Sudhanshu Sekhar Jamuar is interested in this resoluƟ on.
None of the Directors are related inter-se.

Padma Bhushan Ram Narain Agarwal 
Padma Bhushan Ram Narain Agarwal, a scienƟ st of great renown is from Rajasthan.  AŌ er graduaƟ ng, he post 
graduated in AeronauƟ cal Engineering from Madras InsƟ tute of Technology and Masters in Engineering in 
Aerospace Engineering from the Indian InsƟ tute of Science, Bangalore.

He has several awards to his credit, including Padma Sri (1990), Padma Bhushan (2000), Dr. Biren Roy Space 
Science Award (1990), DRDO Technology Leadership Award (1998), Chandrasekhara SaraswaƟ  NaƟ onal 
Eminence Award for Science (2000) and the DRDO LifeƟ me Achievement Award (2004).  He was the Project 
Director of Agni Missile Program.

None of the Directors other than Padma Bhushan Ram Narain Agarwal is interested in this resoluƟ on.
None of the Directors are related inter-se.
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TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Registered Offi  ce: Tanla Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081

  Regd. Folio / Client ID          No. of Shares

         
A  endance Form

16th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
I cerƟ fy that I am Member / Proxy for the Member of the Company.

I hereby accord my presence at the 16th Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company held on Friday, September 28th,2012, 
at 10:30 am at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company situated at Tanla Technology Centre, 

Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081

-------------------------------------------
Signature of the Member/Proxy

Note:
1. Please sign this aƩ endance slip and hand it over at the AƩ endance Verifi caƟ on Counter at the Entrance of the 

MeeƟ ng Hall.
2. This AƩ endance is valid only in case shares are held on the date of the MeeƟ ng.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Registered Offi  ce: Tanla Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081

  Regd. Folio / Client ID          No. of Shares

Proxy form
16th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I/We …………………………………………… of ……………………………………. being Member(s) of M/s. TANLA SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
hereby appoint Mr./ Mrs. ……………………………………………………………………………… 
of……………………………………………………………… or failing which Mr./ Mrs. …………………………………of…………………………………as 
my/our proxy to aƩ end and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 16th Annual General MeeƟ ng of the Company to 
be held on Friday, September 28, 2012, at 10:30 am at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company situated 

at Tanla Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081 and any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ……………… day of September, 2012

-------------------------------------------
Signature of the Member

Note:
(a) The Proxy Form signed across revenue stamp must be deposited at Registered Offi  ce of the Company at  Tanla 

Technology Centre, Hi-Tech City Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500 081 not less than 48 hours before the meeƟ ng.

Affi  x 
Re.1/-

Revenue
Stamp





Highlights
Growth of 135% in domes  c revenue over the previous year 

Redefi ned the product mix and departed from legacy business 

Developed a new framework ”STAR” in line with the strategic 
objec  ves of the customers

Interna  onal deployments and massive campaigns for handset 
manufacturers

Developed social gaming pla  orm

Debt free company since incep  on
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